Steve Spencer
Superintendent

Rachel Alpert
Assistant Superintendent

2023-2024
Board of Directors

Ed Dressel
Lu Ann Meyer
Rob Ogilvie
Zach Steele
Jon Woods

Board Secretary
Juli Lichtenberger

Please join us at our
school board meetings.
Unless otherwise
scheduled the board
meets the second and
fourth Mondays
of the month.

District Office
Board Room
6:30 p.m.

Mission Statement
Dallas School District
is centered on students,
powered by
collaboration, built on
equity, and driven by
excellence.

Dallas School District
111 SW Ash Street
Dallas OR 97338

503.623.5594 ph
503.623.5597 fax

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

Agenda
Board Meeting
February 12, 2024
6:30 p.m.
https://dsd2-org.zoom.us/j/84855147461
District Office Board Room

Welcome/Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of the Agenda

Good News

3.1 LaCreole received a $715.94 grant for yoga mats. A Yoga and
Mindfulness for Mental Health project was funded through this
grant from DonorsChoose.

3.2 Congratulations to Jose Romero who took first place at the Resers
Tournament of Champions!

3.3 Lyle hosted OSU’s Family Science & Engineering Night and had a
great turnout.

Student Report — Rowan McDowell
Public Comment

Announcements
6.} February Calendar 518
6.1.1 Next Board Meeting Tuesday, February 27, 2024 at
4:15 p.m. following a Work Session at LaCreole
Middle School at 3:00 p.m.

6.1.2 Citizens Oversight Committee Meeting March 5,
2024 at 5:30 p.m.

6.1.3 Finance Committee Meeting February 15, 2024 at

5:30 p.m.

Consent Agenda

7.1 Approval of the January 22, 2024 Board Minutes 519
7.2 Staffing Report 523
Financial Report — Tami Montague 524
Reports

9.1 2023 English Language Learner Legislative Report 527
9.2 Enrollment Report 569
9.3 Charter Schools Enrollment Reports 571
9.4 Charter Schools Financial Reports 573
9.5 Charter Schools Minutes and Agendas 579

Discussion Items
10.1 Board Self-Assessment



11.0  Executive Session per ORS 192.660

(2)(1) To Evaluate the Employment-Related Performance of District
Personnel

12.0 Adjourn



www.dallas.k12.or.us

Phone: 503.623.5594 « Fax: 503.623.5597 - Address: 111 SW Ash Street « Dallas, Oregon 97338

T

Public Participation in Board Meetings DALLAS
SCHOOL

DISTRICT

During each school board meeting, the agenda has been set to include an item titled “public
comment.” It is during this portion of the agenda the public can comment on any item that is
or is not on the agenda.

Because of the nature of the Board’s work, it is typical that the Board will hear from a patron.
Public participation is a time for the Board to listen, not a time for discussion or responding to
questions, as the Board needs adequate time to process the information received to ensure
proper steps are taken going forward. The Board may direct questions to district
administrative staff to respond to after the meeting. If input is given related to an action item
later in the agenda, the Board will use the input during their discussion or deliberation of that
specific item. All public comment during a Board meeting is limited to 3 minutes for each
individual. Up to 5 minutes may be granted to one person who represents a group of 3 or
more with similar testimony. The Board Chairperson may adjust or extend allowable time
limits, if necessary.

The Board cannot hear complaints about specific school personnel during an open meeting. If
a patron has a specific complaint against district personnel, the board chair or the
superintendent can direct the patron to the appropriate complaint process governed by
board policy.

There are three ways to provide public comment at a Board meeting.

1) If you wish to address the Board in person during a Board meeting, please fill out the
request for public comment form available outside the boardroom. If the meeting has
started and you decide you would like to provide public comment, please alert the
administrator who was the greeter or the board executive assistant with your request
by simply handing them the public participation form. This will be directed to the
board chair.

2) If you wish to address the Board remotely (via Zoom) during a Board meeting, please
email Juli Lichtenberger, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent and Board,
(juli.lichtenberger@dsd2.org) at least two hours prior to the start of the meeting.
Clearly label the subject line as “Public Comment”. In the email state that you would
like to address the board remotely during the meeting, and include the topic.

Steve Spencer, Superintendent
Rachel Alpert, Assistant Superintendent

Board of Directors: Ed Dressel ¢ Lu Ann Meyer e Rob Ogilvie e Zach Steele e Jonathan Woods



3) If you wish to address the Board in hard copy or email please submit to Juli
Lichtenberger, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent and Board, at
juli.lichtenberger@dsd2.org at least two hours prior to the start of the meeting.
Clearly label the subject line or document as “Public Comment

If you have questions about the district, we encourage you to contact our superintendent.

Thank you for your interest in Dallas School District.

All public meetings, assemblies and celebrations held by the Dallas School District 2 are required to be accessible to persons with disabilities
under Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Accommodations are available upon request to persons who require alternatively
formatted materials or auxiliary aids to ensure effective communication and access to events. Please allow at least 10 business days to arrange
for accommodations. All requests should be sent to:

DO Reception
Dallas School District 2
111 SW Ash Street Or: e-mail compliance.officer@dsd2.org

Dallas, OR 97338
503-623-5594



FEB2024

518

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT
01 02 03
Finance
Committee
Meeting
5:30 p.m.
04 05 06 07 08 09 10
Citizens
Oversight
Committee
Meeting
5:30 p.m.
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
Board Meeting Finance No School
6:30 p.m. Committee Inservice Day
Meeting
5:30 p.m.
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
No School Technology
Holiday Advisory
Committee
Meeting
3:00 p.m.
25 26 27 28 29
Board Work
Session with
LaCreole
3:00 p.m.

Board Meeting
4:15 p.m.




518

Minutes
Work Session at Whitworth Elementary School — 2:45 p.m.
Board Meeting at District Office Board Room — 4:00 p.m.
January 22, 2024
https://dsd2-org.zoom.us/j/84855147461

Present: Jon Woods, Lu Ann Meyer, Ed Dressel, Zach Steele, Steve Spencer, Juli
Lichtenberger, Sean Johnson, Nick Ingalls, Darrick Bruns, Bob Archer

Vistors: Whitworth Staff, Kyle Diehm, Rich Slack, Spencer Jones
Excused: Rob Ogilvie
Work Session with Whitworth Staff

e Introductions
o Darrick Bruns, Principal, welcomed the Board.
e What are your successes, accomplishments or things that you are proud of this
year? :
o Working together during PLC time is going well
Field trips and fun activities for students even through the hard times
Grants for PE and music
Choir activites including community involvment
Science of Reading implmentation throughout the building
Community outreach through Parent Square and using one platform
1:1 devices
Enrichment options
Media and Title programs
STAR assessment allowing staff to see student growth
o HOWL Room
e What are you currently struggling with or directing your resources to
address?
o Find students who are in need of Science of Reading skills
Student attendance
Transition of strategies
Lack of student maturity
Technology
Cameras for security
Learned helplessness
Student retention
o Amount of time it takes for students to receive services
e What are you focused on improving individually, in departments or grade
levels, and as a building?
o Science of Reading
Time to allow fidelity using math and reading adopted curiculum
Staff focued time
Staff mental health/burn out
Impending budget and layoffs

OO0 O0O0OO0OO0OO0O0O0

O 000 O 00

© 0 0O



Work Session adjourned at 3:46 p.m.

Jon Woods, Board Chair, called the regular board meeting to order at 4:03 p.m.

Present: Jon Woods, Lu Ann Meyer, Rob Ogilvie, Ed Dressel, Zach Steele, Steve
Spencer, Juli Lichtenberger, Rachel Alpert, Sean Johnson, Tami Montague, Kas Knoll,
Tim Larson, Bob Archer, Darrick Bruns, Autymn Galbraith, Todd Baughman, Nick Ingalls

Visitors: Hobe Williams, Kelli McGuire, Danielle Landis, April Chapman, Jennifer
Lenoue, Jill Jones, Lynda Spencer, Cindy Read-Keen, Craig Button, Judy White, Trina

Timmerman, Brooke Cross, Tammy Salois, Rich Slack, Kristine Blanchard, Sue Finnegan,
Kyle Diehm

1.0 Approval of the Agenda

Zach Steele moved to approve the agenda as published, seconded by Rob Ogilvie.
The motion passed unanimously.

Jon Woods read in a statement moving the Board into Executive Session.

2.0  Executive Session per ORS 192.660
(2)(d) To Confer with Persons Designated by the Board to Carry on Labor
Negotiations
(2)(f) To Consider Records Exempt by Law from Public Inspection

The Board adjourned back into regular session at 4:25 p.m.
3.0 Welcome/Pledge of Allegiance

4.0  Good News

4.1  The Dallas High School wrestling team traveled to Redmond for the Oregon
Classic Tournament. The girls team placed third and boys placed second.
Way to go team!

4.2 LaCreole Middle School student Terrence Noyes was chosen for state
middle school band in Eugene.

4.3  LaCreole Middle School received a $500 MAPS grant.

4.4 Olivia Jane Sherman was selected as the Dallas High School December
2023 Rotary/Dutch Bros. Student of the Month.
Tim Larson, Dallas High School Principal, and Kas Knoll, LaCreole Middle
School Principal, shared good news with the Board.

5.0  Student Report — Rowan McDowell
No student report was given.

520



6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

521

Public Comment
No public comment.

Announcements
7l January & February Calendars
7.1.1 Next Board Meeting February 12, 2024 at 6:30 p.m.
7.1.2  Citizens Oversight Committee Meeting February 6, 2024 at 5:30
p.m.
7.1.3  Finance Committee Meeting, February 15, 2024 at 5:30 p.m.
The January Finance Committee Meeting was rescheduled to
February 1, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. due to weather.

Consent Agenda

8.1  Approval of the January 8, 2024 Board Minutes
Rob Ogilvie moved to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Zach
Steele. The motion passed unanimously.

Financial Report — Tami Montague

Tami Montague, Director of Fiscal Services, shared an updated view of the
monthly report and asked for feedback from the Board. Tami Montague shared the
financial report for month ending December 2023.

District Equity Committee Update — Todd Baughman

Todd Baughman, Whole Child Administrator, shared information regarding the
creation of a District Equity Advisory Committee. The make-up of the committee
and duties that will be asked of them was shared.

Resolution #23-24-05 Layoff (Board Action) — Rachel Alpert

Rachel Alpert, Assistant Superintendent, asked the Board to adopt the provided
resolution. Zach Steele moved to approve Resolution #23-24-05 Layoff, seconded
by Ed Dressel. The resolution was read out loud by Jon Woods. The motion passed
unanimously.

OSEA Level Three Grievance (Board Action) — Kelli McGuire, OSEA
President

Kelli McGuire, OSEA President, and Hobe Williams, OSEA Field Representative,
provided documents for the Board regarding the history of unpaid leave on
nonstudent contact days by classified staff. The language regarding leave is
referenced in Article 10(G) of the Collective Bargaining Agreement. Questions
were asked and discussion was held. Zach Steele moved to uphold the decision of
Steve Spencer on the Grievance, seconded by Rob Ogilvie. The motion passed
unanimously. Hobe Williams shared further information regarding the cost of
arbitration.



522

13.0 Reports
13.1  Citizens Oversight Committee Draft Minutes
No discussion.

14.0 Discussion Items
No discussion items.

15.0 Adjourn at 4:52 p.m.

Board Chair / Jon Woods Date

Board Secretary / Juli Lichtenberger Date



523

www.dallas.k12.or.us

Phone: 503.623.5594 « Fax: 503.623.5597 » Address: 111 SW Ash Street » Dallas, Oregon 97338

DALLAS
SCHOOL
DISTRICT
Staffing Report
Monday, February 12, 2023
1/23/2024 | Classified | Kurtis | Totten |Name First name 1/22/2024 [ LMS | Autism EOSG{E |1 b1
{Kloe) Change |changed from Support
Kloe to Kurtis
1/25/2024 | Classified | Alayna | Canales | New hire | New hire 1/19/2024 |OH |Special E091 |5.5]0.6875 |£1 | Replaces
Needs lIl - Haley
SLP Antonucci
1/25/2024 | Classified | Tiffanie | Meyers | New hire [ New hire 1/19/2024|0OH | Special EOQSI |5.5/0.6875|E1 | Replaces
Needs |1l - Haley
SLP Antonucci

Steve Spencer, Superintendent
Rachel Alpert, Assistant Superintendent
Board of Directors: Ed Dressel e Lu Ann Meyer e Rob Ogilvie e Zach Steele e Jonathan Woods



DALLAS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 2 FINANCIAL REPORT 2023-2024

524

GENERAL FUND
Total Received
_Revenue & Resources Nov Dec Jan YTD Total _Projected Projected _Budget Budget Status
Beginning Fund Balance 2,394,434 2,394,434 - 2,394,434 2,620,000 1%
Taxes 8,339,836 397,246 47,128 8,793,717 173,283 8,967,000 8,967,000 98%
Interest Income 30,725 49,752 49,038 172,951 157,049 330,000 230,000 75%
State School Funds 2,450,988 2,450,988 2,352,641 19,512,499 9,130,491 28,642,990 28,255,243 69%
Common School Fund - 473,577 473,577 473,577 0%
Other Sources 13,274 112,662 (9,492) 241,883 1,146,548 1,388,431 1,659,421 15%
Total Revenue 10,834,823  3,010,648.14 4,833,749 31,115,484.17 11,080,948 42,196,432 42,205,241 74%
FY 2022-2023 YTD 10,521,315 2.365.340 4.687.437
Total Expended
_Expenditures by Object: Nov, Dec Jan Encumbered & Encumbered YD %
100 Salaries 1,607,216 1,590,403 1,581,814 8,728,300 10,000,907 18,729,207 18,742,547 47%
200 Associated Payrall 941,911 842,621 834,852 4,726,646 5,110,511 9,837,156 10,028,537 47%
300 Services 932,493 750,025 598,889 5,383,717 3,629,698 9,013,415 8,776,921 61%
8 400 Supplies & Materials 29,288 22214 30,536 291,110 161,072 452,182 644,561 45%
; 500 Equipment 7,930 2,150 51,363 297,136 79,759 376,894 397,300 75%
g 600 Dues, Fees & Insurance (1,678) 1,670 544 342,374 7,663 349,927 320,475 107%
T 700 Fund Modifications 117,664 117,664 - 117,664 128,000 92%
800 Planned Reserve - = = s = - 3,166,900 0%
Not Yet Encumbered/Projected 1,1 55,140
Total Expenditures 3,517,160 3,326,746 3,097,997 19,886,948 18.9_52,459 40,030,592 42 L
FY 2022-2023 YTD 3,169,478 3,410,368 3,170,537 11,228,536 20,143,644 2200241 —AL%,
Total Expended
_Expenditures by Function: (Appropriated) Nov Dec Jan YTDTotal  Encumbered & Encumbered
1000 Instruction 2,260,729 2,149,732 2,116,116 12,207,508 12,906,981 25,114 487 24,951,315 49%
2000 Support 1,256,431 1,058,350 981,882 7,561,778 6,082,518 13,644,296 13,959,026 54%
3000 Community Service = = - -
5000 Transfers 117.664 117,664 - 117,664 128,000 92%
6000 Contingency/Unappropriated = = = 3,166,900 0%
Not Yet Encumbered/Projected 1154146
Total Expenditures 3,517,160 3,326,746 3,097,997 19,886,948 18,989,499 M e,
—ﬂwmﬁm__”amg* 30,59, 82,205,241 47%
Current Projection of Ending Fund Balance 2,165,840 5.44%
Target % 2023-24 8.00%
INVESTMENTS NOTES ON DEBT SERVICE
Nov Dec_ Jan
LGIP 5703 - SSF/Taxes
Beginning Balance 3,025,787 13,328,842 11,332,765
Interest 29,833 49,191 47,306 NOTES TO FINACIAL STATEMENT:
Deposits 13,547,059 2,791,209 2,221,609 All cash, investment and credit card accounts have been balanced, reconciled and reviewed and all
Fees (2) 0) ) cash and investment accounts are reconciled to the general ledger by the business manager as of
Withdrawals (3,273,835) (4.836.477) (3,655,283)) 1/31/2024. The adopted budget reflects expected expenditures. All payroll reports have been filed and
Month-End Balance __ 13,328,842 11,332,765 9,046,397 | payroll liabilities have been paid timely. All federal and state reimbursement requests as well as required
; bﬁnancial rep:r!in% forms hiave t;eendﬁfed timely. All credit card expenditures, travel and other
. reimbursements have been reviewed and approved at the proper level. There have been no significant
LG;:L’;‘?“:B’;;:;M“ 850,701 s 3,850 224 _ changes to the internal control system, to the accounting system or accounting policies rha?are
Interest 4197 15.504 15,585 significant. Currently the business office is adequately staffed to allow for proper segregatlion of duties
A g & ” and | am nol aware of any new pronouncements or other financial changes that may require additional
Deposit 173,835 2,886,477 55,283 staff time to properly implement. All financial statements thal have been provided to the board are
Fees (10) (10) accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and | am aware of no other financial matters that
Withdrawals (24,697) (280,873) - the board should be aware of at this time. | know of no cases of fraud or other misconduct and | have
Month-End Balance 1,013,036 3,634,223 3,705,081 not been asked by the superintendent to do anything that makes me feel uncomfortable or to present
any information | feel is inaccurate. Tami Montague 2/5/2024.
LGIP 5018 - Facllities, Repairs & Maintenance
[ Beginning Balance 144,653 145,247 145,864
ﬁ Interest 594 617 618
= Deposit
@ Fees
g Withdrawals - - S
= Month-End Balance 145,247 145,864 146,482
LGIP 3974 - Bond Retainage
Beginning Balance 89,933 10,829 10,875
Interest 44 46 241
Deposit 56,496
Fees
Withdrawals (79,149)
Month-End Balance _1_0,25_;_ _12&;!5 E_Tallj__i:z_
LGIP 6022 - GO Bonds Series 201782022
Beginning Balance 9,049,346 9,166,009 9,204,933
Interest 37,514 38,924 38,782
Deposit 79,149 - (56,496)
Fees
Withdrawals
Month-End Balance 5166008 9204933 9,187,220
Total Cash Invested in LGIP 23,663,964 24,328,661 23,052,792
LGIP Interest Rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
SUMMARY - ALL FUNDS Nov_ Dec Jan Ry Budget
- Add Student Act Funds
g Total Revenue This Month 16,342,979 4,744 546 21,549,002 56,242,595 1,350,000 82,101,386 69%
E Total Expense This Month 4,547 580 4,505,332 4,794,368 29,513,649 82,101,386 36%
:"‘l Excess / (Deficiency) =
Variance 11,795,399 239,215 16,754,724 26,728 945

2/6/2024



DALLAS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 2 FINANCIAL REPORT 2023-2024

525

FACILITIES, REPAIRS& MAINTENANCE
ue s Nov Dec Jan XTD Total [Expected  Total Projected YTD %
Beginning Fund Balance 155,430 156430 - 155,430 150,000 104%
Revenue from Local Sources 594 617 618 4,008 4,008 18,000 22%

o | Transfers/Sale of Property o - 96,000 0%

2 | Total Revenue 594 617 156,047 159,438 - 159,438 264,000 60%

=}

z n: Nov_ Dec San YTD Total Total Projected Budget YID %

i | Instruction - 1000 247 149 298 12,741 8,412 121,153 69,710

Facilities - 2000 11,725 11,725 1,725 204,030 6%

Capital Projects - 4000 - - 10,000 0%

Unap End Fund Balance - = - 49 970 0%

Total Expenditures 14,196 149 298 124,466 8412 132,878 333,710 37%

ESSER Emergency Relief Funds

_Revenue & Resources Nov_ Dec Jan, YTD Total Expect Jotal Projected Budget YTD %
Beginning Fund Balance - - .
Revenue from Federal Sources 124,042 652,926 120,968 1,195,247 1,195,247 2,715,202

= | Transfers/Sale of Property = <

g Total Revenue 124,042 652,926 120,968 1,195,247 - 1,195,247 2,715,202 44%

z

z ndi on: Nov_ Dec Jan XYTDTotal  Encumbered  Total Projected Budget Y1D %

Instruction - 1000 18,802 18,092 28,375 345,866 160,332 506,198 649,563

Support Services - 2000 61,226 102,876 102,958 980,713 627,169 1,607,883 2,065,638

Unap End Fund Balance - . - .

Total Expenditures 80,028 120,968 131,332 1,326,579 787,501 2,114,081 2,715,202 49%

FOOD SERVICE Nov Dec san YTD Total, xpec| Total Projected Budget YT %
Beginning Fund Balance 55,395 56,395 55,395 200,000 28%
Revenue from Local Sources 659 59 134 1,998 1,998 26,000 8%
Revenue from State Sources 283 3,470 144 3,897 3,897 77,000 5%

2 | Revenue from Federal Sources 180,290 85,806 59,352 362,403 90,000 452,403 1,080,000 34%

g Transfers/Sale of Property = - 10,000

§ Total Revenue 181,233 89,335 115,025 423,693 90,000 513,693 1,393,000 30%

w

_Expenditures by Function; Nov, San. Encu To! YD %
Food Service - 3100 108,498 104,826 92,613 558,711 565,780 1,124,491 1,279,140 44%
Food Service - Unap Ending Fund Bal - - - 113,860 0%
Total Expenditures 108,498 104,826 92,613 558,711 565,780 1,124,491 1,393,000 40%
L__| MTD CashFlow Tracking Includes Receivables (45,018)

SPECIAL GRANTS & PROJECTS Nov_ Dec_ SJan_ YTD Total_ B YID %
Revenue from Local Sources 8,025 6,401 11,546 55,040 196,000 28%
Revenue from Intermediate Sources 125,000 125,000 500,000 25%
Revenue from State Sources 70,782 247,590 225141 2,569,782 4,745,048 54%

5 Revenue from Federal Sources 154,813 80,705 68,674 414,848 1,867,895 22%

o | Transfers from General Fund - %

g | Total Revenue 233,620 459,695 2,331,630 3,164,671 7,308,943 43%

[=]

Z | Expenditures by Function; Nov Dec Jan tal YTD %

W1 Special Grants & Projects - 1000 360,558 373,565 360,338 2,090,443 2,522,237 4,612,680 5,747,540 36%
Special Grants & Projects - 2000 62,230 146,629 52,426 537,251 419,891 957,142 1,436,303 7%
Special Grants & Projects - 3000 845 845 29,100 3%
Transfers to Other Funds - 5000 - - - = - - 96,000 0%

Total Expenditures 452,788 520,194 412,763 2,628,538 2,942,129 5,570,667 7,308,943 36%

DEBT SERVICE - GO BONDS

_Revenue & Resources Nov, Dec Jan YTD Total [Expected  Total Projected Budget YTD % |
Beginning Fund Balance 822,129 822,129 822,129 600,000 137%
Revenue from CY Property Tax Receipts 2,940,701 139,429 15,194 3,085,324 3,085,324 3,200,000 97%
Revenue from PY Property Tax Receipts 13,145 1,308 1,588 19,613 50,000
Revenue from Interest Income 4,197 15,594 16,090 48,742 48,742 45,000 108%

5 | Revenue from Federal Sources M 230 230 500

™ | Transfers from Other Fund - hd - -

% Total Revenue 2,958,043 156,331 855,113 3,986,038 - 3,966,424 3,895,500 102%

" | Expenditures by Function: Nov. Dec. dan. XYTDTotal  Encumbered Total Projected Budaet. YID %

Debt Service - 5110 610 Principal * = - 2,815,000 0%
Debt Service - 5110 621 Interest 24,697 280,883 305,580 - 305,580 611,150 50%
Debt Service - 5110 640 Bank Fees 10 20 - 20 100 20%
Debt Service - Unap End Fund Bal - - 469,250 0%
Total Expenditures 24,697 280,883 10 305,600 - 305,600 3.895,500 8%
3,680,438
DEBT SERVICE - FULL FAITH & CREDIT
n s Nov_ Dec. Jdan. XTDTotal ~  Expected  Total Projected Budget YTD %
Beginning Fund Balance 100 100 -
Transfers from Other Fund 117,664 117,664 118,000 100%

E Total Revenue - 117,664 100 117,764 118,000 100%

2 | Expenditures by Function: Nov_ Dec. Jan, XTDTotal  Encumbered  Total Projected YID %

2 | Debt Service - 5110 610 Principal - - 100,000 0%
Debt Service - 5110 621 Interest 8,782 8,782 8,782 17,564 50%
Debt Service - 5110 640 Bank Fees 436 0%
Debt Service - Unap End Fund Bal - - - - - - -

Total Expenditures - 8,782 - 8,782 - 8,782 118,000 7%

2/6/2024



DALLAS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 2 FINANCIAL REPORT 2023-2024

526

DEBT SERVICE - PERS PENSION BOND
Revenue & Resources Nov_ Dec_ Jan YTD Total Expected Total Projected Budget YTD %
Beginning Fund Balance 799,000 799,000 1,000,000
Service From Other Funds 205,536 201,948 199,257 1,082,615 1,082,615 2,250,000 48%
= Total Revenue 205,536 201,948 998,256 1,881,615 - 1,082,615 3,250,000 58%
g itu Fun |°""_ Nov, Dec Jan XTD Total ~ Encumbered  Total Projected YID%
g Debt Service - 5110 610 Principal - - - - - 1.345,000 0%
L | Debt Service - 5110 621 Interest - - - . - 811,358 0%
Debt Service - 5110 680 Direct Pmt to PERS - -
Debt Service - 5110 Bank Fees & Issuance - 100
Debt Service - Unap End Fund Bal - - - - - 1,093,542
Total Expenditures - - - - - - 3,250,000 0%
|| Revenue & Resources Noy. Dec. Jan. Expected  Total Projected Budget YID%.
Beginning Fund Balance 92,417 92,417 92,417 100,000 92%
- Revenue from Local Sources 45 16,458 (23,976) 723 723 1,500
2| Revenue from State Sources 1,767,528 41,001 1,808,529 1,808,529 2,000,000 90%
2 Revenue from Bond Proceeds - - - - N
5 Total Revenue 1,767,572 16,458 109,442 1,801,669 - 1,901,669 2,101,500 90%
[
nditu ion: Nov_ Dec_ Jan_ To red Total Projected Budget YID%
Bond Expen‘!r_e_s-_t%DOD - N 11,308 2_9.693 - 1,802,652 59,179 1,861,830 2,101,500 86%
Capital Construction - Bond 2022
Revenue & Resources Nov Dec Jan, YID %
Beginning Fund Balance 11,989,979 11,989,979 11,989,979 13,300,000
Revenue from Local Sources 37,514 38,924 38,782 306,997 306,997 200,000 153%
§ Revenue from State Sources - 4,000,000
o | Revenue from Bond Proceeds - N
g Total Revenue 37,514 38,924 12,028,761 12,296,976 12,296,976 17,500,000 70%
o
_Expenditures by Function: Noy_ Dec Jdan a YID %
Capital Expenses- 4000 338,904 113,091 1,059,354 2,871,373 5,979,190 8,850,563 11,140,000 26%
| Capital Projects - Unap End Fund Bal 6,360,000

For questions about this report, please contact Tami Montague

Dallas School District Business Office
111 SW Ash St, Dallas, OR 97338
tami.montague(@dsd2.org

2/6/2024



527

sanjeA sassalddns g > ‘sjuapnis QT Uey) s5a| SJuUNod sassasddns .,

"Juadiad g6 ueyy 4a3ea.d sanjea sassalddns g6 < pue ‘quadsad g uey) ssI|

'T20Z AeI Ul Aep [00Y25 35T B3 JO SE SIUIW]|0US 193)42. B|qEl SIUY1 U] 538eIu2ad pUE SIUNOD JUIPMS "310N

¥'1€ ' wi33-buoy
TLT [4" J[lqoN
* " §53/asnoH
i == by
* + SI3ALIIY JUIY
* . uoi3poNp3 [pW.ioH paydniiauj
¥'1 oT S3131[IgDSIQ YHM SIUIPNIS
ey T€ ] pabpiupAppsig Ajjpa1wouody
S UELJEY] uno) SOIISHOIBIBYD v | e

sa13suaeley) diydesSowaq Jaulea ysiSug uaiin)

‘uoissalddns Alejuawajdwod

10 1ed se sjunod ssalddns s|eAlaju| 'SIUIPNIS OT UBY) SS3| SIUNOI sassalddns ,, 'ZzZ0Z ABIA Ul Aep |00YDs 1ST BY3 JO SB SJUBW||0JUD 123|J3J 3|qe] SIY3 Ul SJUN0D JUapnis "aJoN

600°€ vee 0zZL G9€'T Sjuspnis |030]

068°C 6.8 589 9ZET danaN

611 174 13 6€ 4913

6v 6E-0€ 6T-0T * Jowiio4

0L ST T¢ 6£-0€ adiny

|esol (z1-6) 431K (8-9) a1PPIN (s-)) Meyuawajz  ssouseaq ysyBuz

SjUNo0) Juawijjosuy Jauseaq ysijSu3

22-1202
¢ as Se|jeq :aweN 313sid



528

s3uneJ yioq uo ssaiSoid ajgelop J0 ssaidoid awos

:auopN

Sunes suo uo ssaidoad pajyuwiy

:398ue]

s3uiiel yoq uo ssaidouad pajwii

:uonjewIojsues )

uoljew.ojsues |

-uoneulwigleqg

ssa1804d panwi _ Suney sapein Aiepuodss

e

‘9z|5-u
||ews 03 anp ajqgedldde Jou 01 543)31 -, "d73 03 ¥ap.i/ uQ 03 Ajdde jou saop julod
snuoq ay) ‘siauleaq ysiB8u3 JaAaN Joj anjea ay3 ueyl Jaleals si siaulea ysisu3
J3A3 10} aNnjeA 3y} JI J0jedipul yoea Joj juiod snuoqg e usea Aew s1olIsIg 330N

a|qejieae sjujod paiydiam JO %0°0S > :SSa4304d pajwi]
a|qe|ieae siuiod palysiam Jo %6 72 01 0°0S 55343044 SwoS
a|qe|ieae syulod paydiam Jo %0°'G/ < :ssaidoid 3|qeioN
‘elIall) ssuney

ssalfold panwil | Suney sapesn Alejusawa)|l

€€y S3U104 PA1YSIaM JO JU0I3d 8'8€ S3u10d PAIYSIAM JO JUBIad
00¢€ a|qejieny sjujod paiysia |e1oL 00 3|qe|jieAy Sjuiod paiySiap jeiol

0€T sjuiod paiydiam |eol QST sjulod paiysiam |ejol -
N TR R e Juawjjoiuz A1bpuodas-1sod TAx P e Rt IRy e
Q€ x -- == - - uononpRiL) I03A-9 OTXxXT T 0 T JU3LWANA3IYIY YIDIN
SIx€ g g z ¥I0J1-UQ 3pPI9 ;6 0% e {imoJo v13
OTx€ € 1 z JU3WU0IIAUT AID1IISAY ISD3T 0T xT T .o T JUIWANAIYIY V13
0T x € 3 0 £ auydpsiqg Aiouoysnpxy | ST x 9 9 T S auyydjasig Aspuojsnjox3
OTxT T 0 I 2Juppuany Jojnbay ST XTI T | 0 T m a3uppualy Jojnbay
STxT 1 1 d1303p0ILUD | OEXT R 1 d13 03 o011 UQ
sjujod (9-1) (t100) | (S-T) - si03edipuj -sjujod (9-1) (T400) (S-1) Jojedipuj|
pa1ydiom ., S]UlOd | snuog  [9A9] sopesp Alepuodag | paiysdiam sjulod | snuog | [9A9] _ sapesp Alejuaws|3

sguijey pue uoneuiwidlag



529

0T ueyj ssa| syunod sassasddns ,,,

"321s-U ||ews 03 anp 3|qedljdde jou 03 s13jal -
*dnoJd juapnys |eJ0) Y] SB S12uJeaT Ysij3ul JaA3 Isn S10)eJIpul Y10 ||y “dnoud juapnis [e20) ay] Se SI3UJeaT Ysi|u3 Jua1In) U0 Saljal 473 03 Y204 UQ "31ON

, “Wusdtad g uey) Jajeasd sanjea sassalddns 66 < pue ‘Juadiad g ueyj ss3| sanjea sassalddns g > ‘sJuapnis

9ZIS-N v = - * “ 1 juawyjoiui A1opuolas-isod
37IS-N H - — _ = = " 71 uonDNPDIY ID3L-S
ss248014 awos € T r4 TEL 008 6 ¥I041-UQ 3PPID 4,6
$52130.d 2Wos € , 1 Z €/9 £ \_Mll 19 JUaWUOIINUF BA1)I14S3Y 15D
$59.38014 aWwos _ N € W 0 € 0'€6 576 Z1-9 auydiasiqg Aipuoisnjox3
ssaJdo.d pajwi 1 0 w T '8S Ty 19 a2uppuany Jojnbay
$sa4804d paywi e T VA“\ T Vf\“\/ 6°CC Nﬁm ‘ d13 01 3041 UQ
Suney (1)~ (1o30) 2 len) siaules SIPWMERN | sopean’ | io3e1pu| |
Jojeaipu| mu..__on_ shuog | [9A9] | ﬁ__mcm_ ._w>mz ._m__m:m W #

sSuney pue ‘s|anal ‘sanjep ‘siojealpuj sapeio EmucoUmm

*371S-U ||ews 01 Inp a|qedljdde Jou 03 s1ajad -

-, Jua21ad g ueyl Jaieald sanjen sassalddns g6 < pue Quadiad g ueyy ssa| sanjen sassaiddns § > ‘sjuapnis
0T uey3 ss3| s3unod sassasddns ,,, "dnoJd Juspnis |eJ04 ay3 Se siaulea ysi|du3 1aA3 asn Eoumu_ﬁc_ J2y30 ||y "dnoJs Juapnis |B20) 3y} Se siaulea] ysi3u3 Em::u :o s8l|3d 473 03 ¥a0d] :O Eoz

TSl e il s el e 87 YIMOID YION |
ss2180.14 pauwr] | 1 0 1 | eez 9' 8-€ WBWINBIYY YIOW |
- = = — e — |

i a0 8- yamoID 13

—

ssa.804d paywir T 0 T 307 1874 8-€ JuaWaN3ydy vi3
ssaldo.d 3|qeioN 9 T S G6< G6< S-) auydsiq Eu:o..méuxw_
ssaifoid paywr | T o T SvS 88T S aouppuapy o6y |

ssa18014 paywir] T ’ T e 6TY G- d13 03 }90J1 UQ

ok P
Suney . (e1) | (t400) 5 (e-T) siauied’ siduieay .
e e : _ : . saped Jojedipu
lojedipuj | swulod | snhuog . IPAs1 | ysyBu3 JanaN ysnsuz RE ! Pt

sSuiey pue ‘s|ana ‘sanjep ‘si03edipu) sapeln Alejuawa|3



530

T o've > T 09'9T >
[4 6¥7°81 01 0'v¥ [4 64'02 010997
€ LE'YS 01 0S°8Y € yT'vC 0108°0¢
Jui10d T = SNUOQ + [3A37] :SsaJS04d paywi]
sju10d § > pue 7 2 Snuoq + [9A37 :ss2450.4d awos v 66°09 03 8E'vS v L5768 M 5SS
sjulod ¢ 2 shUoq + |[9A37 :ssa480.d d|qeloN S 00'19 2 S 85°6C 2
[3A97] ploysaJiyl EUCH ploysatyl
:sguljey Joledipuj (8-v) Yamoin Yo (8-£) 3udWanalydy Yow
"S1SIXa J98UO| OU J0JEIPUI BY3 | JO UOIIE|NI|eI 3U3 03 sadueyd N ST ) |
[BIIUBISQNS 3JB 343y} §I SPjoysaly} ayy 29ueya Aew 3QO 3yl "512sIp Jo ssaiSosd ay) I 0s'vy > 1 59ve> ﬁ
J03UOW 03 JAPJO Ul SIEIA INOJ IXaU Y] JOj SPIOYSIY} 353Y) 9Zaa4y ||IM JA0 YL "2JON z 66'61 01 05 bp z 1'6Z 01 S9+7
9]1nuadJad ;67 > P|OYSIIYI T [9AT e € | /€755 01 00°0S _ _ € 6/°9€ 01 07'67
3|uadIad ,05 > 03 3|13UBIAd ,GT 2 :P|OYSAIYI Z [9AS] e b ,ﬁ
9|uadJad ,G/ > pue 3|1Iu2Jad ;0§ 2 PIOYSIYI € [9AR] e v | V6'8503BE'SS | 4 ST’y 03 08°9¢ |
3|1uadiad 06 > pue 3|13uadJad S/ 2 :P|OYSAIYL 7 |9AS] e 5 * 56'85 2 5 9T'Th 2
a|1uasJad ,06 2 :P|OYSBIYL G [9AS] e B | e R et EO o e
:ploysalyy oyoads e ueyy 1sjeasgio | | ik l.ZPIoYSadyl e 119097 [z PIOYSaIYL
03 [enba s1 124} an|eA e 0} SpUOdsalI0d J03RIIPUI YIS 1O [9A3] BYL (8-t) yimouo y13 (8-€) Juawanalydy v1i3
— . = “ B —— - g
T 00°88 > T _ 01°08> | T ST'79>
[4 66°06 01 00'88 [4 69°€8 010T°08 [4 75690152779
€ 66'€6 01 00°'T6 € 6€'88 01 0L°€E8 € PT'EL 01 G569
14 66°96 01 00'¥6 14 €€°V6 01 0’88 w v $9'8L 01 ST EL
S 00'L6% | S | YEVEZ | W S 59'8L 2
~ BAe1 | ploysaiyl | @Ae1 | ploysaiyr| | [2A31 | ploysaJyy
(5-)1) auidsiqg Aipuoisnjaox3 (5-3) a2uppuary Jojnbay | . (S-)1) d13 03 Y2011 UO

S|9A31 pue ‘spjoysaay] ‘sioledipuj sapesn Alejuawa|]l



531

I SLvp> | 1 1 05'9L > |

4 69°€S 01 SL'vb [4 6C'€E8 0105’94

€ L6'8S010L'ES | | € 6568 01 0E'E8
julod T = snuoq + |9A37 :ssa48044 pajiwin L ,.

sJulod { > pue Z 2 SNUOQ + [9A37 :ssa4804d awos v SR hes ol HIER = U506

siulod ¢ 2 snuoq + |9A97 :ssaJsoud 3|qeloN S 0L'99% S 0L'€62
 [aA9] ~ ploysaiyl |2A91 | pjoysaJyl

:sguney Joiedipuj Juawjjoiuz Aibpuosas-3sod | uonvNPDIY IDIA-S

*535IX3 198U0| OU 1033IpU] 8Y3 31 1O UCKE|ND|ED By} 0} Sadueyd S P e I DL e e A

|BIIUBISQNS 3JE 3JaY} JI SPloysaly) ay) a8ueyd Aew 30 YL "S1213sIp Jo ssaidoud auy I . 88°€L > T 81’99 >
10}JUOL 0} JAPJO Ul SJeaA INOJ 1Xau ay) JOJ SPJOYSaIY) 853y} 8zaaly ||ImM 30 YL 3ION Z . 62°€80188'€L [4 p8'LL 018199 |
S|aUsRIRG GST > IPOYSIIYLT [BAET e € 6668 0 0E'€8 € IS'¥8 0I5 LL |
9|13uad.ad ,0G > 03 9|1IUIAd ,GZ 2 :P|OYSAIYI Z |9ADT e _ j
a|nusdiad G/ > pue 9|13uddIad ,0G 2 (P|OYSAIYL € |9AD] e 14 00°¥6 01 00°06 | | 14 6ST6 0 ESVE |
3|nusdiad 06 > pue 3[13uadJad G/ 2 :P|OYSAIY 7 [9AD] e S 10°06 2 c 09162 i
3|13us04ad ;06 2 :PIOYSDIYI G [9A] e
:ploysaJyl oyoads e ueyy sajeasdio | | _wbm._ | Eoﬁﬁm...f. =l s t_o_._mm.:._.._.l

01 |enba si 1eYy3 anjeA e 031 spuodsa.i0d J0JeIIPUl YIED 104 [BA3] 3yl )api-uQ apniy ,6 (21-9) Juawuo.iinug aA1I1IS3Y ISD3IT

! 00'88 > 1 S0'TL> | 01°0€ >

(4 66°06 01 00°88 [4 6¥'LL0OYSOCL | | [« 68°LEO010T'0E

€ 66°'€60100°T6 € m 66780105 LL € 68't 0106°LE

v | 66'96 010016 14 ¥£°06 01 00°€E8 v 61°5S 01 06'%Y

S _ 00°£6 3 S | SL06% | S 07'S5 2
e e S R el =l ] == Sl Peasaonene e s e LS

ELES! | ploysaiyy [ELES . Ploysaiyy ELEY] | ploysaiyy
(z1-9) aundidsig Aipuoisnjax3 (Z21-9) 22uppuaY IDINHAY (21-9) 473 03 ¥apIL UD .

S|9A37 pue ‘spjoysaly] ‘siojedipu] sapesn Aiepuodas



532

English Learners in
Oregon

Annual Report 2021-22

June 2023

J’. OREGON
. DEPRRTMENT OF
EDUCATION

Oregon achieves . . . together!




English Learners in Oregon

Table of Contents

Acknowledgements........ R RN SR SR RS AR kb mn IRO— sovl

Executive SUMMArY .....ccccevreeiiiiennnnenieiieeenennnnnn. SRR e erennnae cavred

Introduction............. SO SRS AR TBE—— S aneamnns 6
WHRY this FEPOIE? ..ottt e st e et e e e e et e e et e e etseeeeee s e e 6
D OO TEIERE...ocmsconciaerionmsn s sy s s e S S S e 7

Section 1: Demographics of English Learners in Oregon in 2020-21..................... 8

Current and Former ENglish LEArNers .........ccivioiiuiiieiieeie et e e e 8
Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs.................... SRR TRRR S Iy
Free or Reduced Price IMRAIS ........cciuiiiiiiiiiiieere ettt et 17
MIBraNE EQUCATION:. ... ccommrmmmesummsmmmumsnssissivesissssas s e s v s e S e e N S TS0 5 S s sk et 20
Talented and GIfted .......c.uuiiiiiiiii e e 20

LA AR R A A R R L R R R R R R ) AR L LR R R R RN SsssBERRERIRINRIRRES LR R RNy Sssssnnaes 21
Progress towards English Language ProfiCi@ney........uuuviieieaie ittt eeeeee e 21
Student Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics .........uuuuuuveeeeeeeeeeoseoeeoeee 24

Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond .26

REBUIAE ATLENTANCE. ....tiii ittt e e e e enae e e e et e e e e e eereeetseseesseesse s 26
ONTrack 10 GradUALE .......niiiiiiiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeee e oo 27
oIV e T T €T = o [V 1o o 28

Current English learners graduating in four years were over 2.7 times more likely to receive a modified

s []Lo] E 29
Oregon State Seal Of BIlILEIaCY .......cvuivirrrriierrsrieerireiiosiisssieeiontiasmisttieeeeeeetseersssesesnesssresstetssssssssssenns 29
Postsecondary ENFONMIENT: i iuuismmamsssimsssvvssvvssnsssisesoieiiss o sis a8 s iiiissisaiiisiisiiin snssnnsmonenssnsssosanresssssres 31
Section 5: State Revenues and Expenditures for Current English Learners......... 33
References.....ccoceeuenene. R AN SN NS SRRSO R SRS R 35

533



English Learners in Oregon

Acknowledgements

Appreciation is extended to the following ODE staff members who have assisted districts to
submit data included in this report, built and maintained ODE data collection systems, aided in
the analysis and interpretation of data, and provided thoughtful feedback on the report.

Office of Teaching, Learning, and Assessment
Jennifer Patterson, Assistant Superintendent
Mary Martinez-Wenzl, Director

Reza Norouzian, Research Analyst

Kim Miller, Education Program Specialist

Office of Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion

Deb Lange, Assistant Superintendent

Kelly Kalkofen, Education Program Specialist

Mirela Blekic, Education Program Specialist

Mariana Praschnik-Enriquez, Education Program Specialist
Ana Salas, Executive Support Specialist

Susy Mekarski, Education Program Specialist

Office of Finance and Information Technology
Mike Mendez, Director
Lauren Holstein, Business Analyst

Office of Research, Assessment, Data, Accountability, and Reporting
Dan Farley, Assistant Superintendent

Jon Wiens, Director

Andrea Lockard, Director

Ben Wolcott, Education Program Specialist

W. Joshua Rew, Psychometrician

Greg Houser, Research Analyst

Evan Fuller, Research Analyst

Stephanie Evers, Research Analyst

534



535

English Learners in Oregon

Executive Summary

ORS 327.016 directs the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) to prepare an annual report on English
learner program funding and student outcomes. The report’s intention is to describe the population of
English Learners in Oregon and provide a summary of district and state progress towards meeting their needs
and objectives. This report is also available on ODE’s legislative reports webpage. Any member of the public
can contact the Government Relations and External Affairs Director to request a copy of this report.

Definitions

ORS 327.016 describes students who receive English language instruction, supports, and services as part of
an English language development (ELD) program as English learners. While these students are learning
English in an ELD program, the English learner label only focuses on a singular dimension (i.e., learning
English) and does not reflect the linguistic and cultural assets of the students (Garcia, 2009). Thus, although
this report will use the English Learner label in order to comply with ORS 327.016, we recognize these
students are multilingual learners who bring valuable linguistic and cultural assets.

The ODE annually reports four groups of English learners: current, former, ever, and never English learners.
Current English learners are multilingual students who were learning English in an ELD program during the
2021-22 school year. Former English learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to the 2021-22 school year. Ever English learners are the
combination of both current and former English learners. Finally, never English learners are monolingual
English or multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and
services in an ELD program before or during the 2021-22 school year.

Nearly 100,000 students in Oregon are current or former English learners.

As of May 1, 2022, 546,726 students enrolled in Oregon public schools and districts. Among those students,
10.4 percentwere current English learners (56,683 students), 7.8 percent were former English learners
(42,770 students), and 81.8 percent were never English learners (447,273 students). Both current and former
English learners (i.e., ever English learners constituting 18.2 percent of students) were an incredibly diverse
student population in 2021-22.

The distribution of current English learners varied across grade levels and districts in Oregon during the 2021-
22 school year. Woodburn School district served the highest percentage of current English learners, with 41.5
percent of students learning English in an ELD program as of May 1, 2022. On the other hand, 67.5 percent of
Oregon districts either had no current English learners or very few (i.e., less than 5% of all students).

Other key features of the English learner student population in the 2021-22 school year include the following:

e The majority of current English learners were in elementary grades (61.1%) while the majority of
former English learners were in high school grades.

! Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction,
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English
language instruction, supports, and services.



536

English Learners in Oregon

* The number of recently arrived current English learners (i.e., new immigrant students) declined from
4,373 in 2020-21 to 4,145 students in 2021-22,

e Spanish was the predominant home language of current English learners (76.6%), but overall there
were 199 documented unique home languages (an increase of 18 languages from 2020-21) spoken
by current English learners. Other prevalent languages include Russian, Vietnamese, Chinese, Arabic,
Chuukese, and Somali; each being the home language of about 2 percent of current English learners.

* Approximately 77 percent of current English learners were Latino/a/x, and 31.7 percent of Latino/a/x
students were current English learners. A similar percentage of Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander
students (30.3%) were current English learners.

English learners are overrepresented in special education and underrepresented in
TAG programs.

The report also examines the involvement of English learners in targeted federal and state programs: free or
reduced price meals, special education, migrant education, and the talented and gifted (TAG) program.

Key findings include the following:

* Ahigher percentage of current English learners received special education services and supports as
compared to never English learners (20.3 vs. 15.4%); however, ever English learners and never
English learners had similar percentages of students receiving s pecial education services and
supports (14.5 vs, 15.4%).

* Almost 9.0 percent of current English learners received services in migrant education programs (i.e.,
5,131 students). Additionally, 51.4 percent of the students in migrant education programs were
current English Learners

*  While across Oregon 6.5 percent of never English learners participated in TAG programs, this figure
was 4.9 percent for former English learners and just 0.4 percent for current English learners.

Younger English learners are more likely to be on track to English Language Proficiency
than their older peers.

Oregon monitors whether or not current English learners are on-track to attain English language proficiency
within seven years. More than half of current English learners (53.2%) in elementary school grades were on
track. In contrast, current English learners in middle or high school grades as well as current English learners
with disabilities were much less likely to be on track.

Very few current English learners are meeting state standards in English Language Arts
and Mathematics.

A substantially smaller percentage of current English learners in elementary schools (7.0%) versus former
(38.7%) and never English learners (47.8%) met or exceeded state standards in English Language Arts in 2021-
22, Asimilar trend is observed at middle and high schools.

Similarly, a substantially smaller percentage of current English learners in elementary schools (7.1%) versus
former (36.9%) and never English learners (39.2%) met or exceeded state standards in mathematics in 2021-
22. Asimilar trend is observed at middle and high schools.

4



537

English Learners in Oregon

Attendance tends to be higher in elementary grades, particularly among former
English learners

Former and never English learners have the highest levels of regular attendance (76.1 and 68.7%) in
elementary school grades. Current English learners have rates of regular attendance substantially lower in

elementary (60.3%), middle (56.1%), and high school (43.5%) grades. Regular attendance rates decline for
current, former, and never English learners in middle and high school grades.

Current English learners are more likely to graduate with a modified diploma

Former English learners graduated at rates better than never English learners (86.4 vs. 81.7%) in 2021-22;
however, substantially fewer current English learners graduated in four years (65.3%). Moreover, current
English learners that graduated in four years were over 2.7 times more likely to receive a modified rather
than a regular diploma compared to that for never English learners. This ratio increased to 3.4 times for the
cohorts that graduated in five years.

Students designated as English learners in high school are less likely to go to college
than their peers.

Postsecondary enrollment rates for former English learners were comparable to those of never English
learners; in both cases, about 55 percent of high school graduates enrollin college within 16 months of
graduation. On the other hand, current English learners were less likely to enroll in postsecondary education
institutions. About 38 percent of current English learners went on to college within 16 months of high school
graduation.

District revenues and expenditures

As in reports from previous years, this report summarizes the ratio of expenditures to revenues. In 2021-22,
that ratio was 0.86, decreased from 0.95 in 2020-21.



538

English Learners in Oregon

Introduction

In 2021-22, students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an English language
development (ELD) program as well as students who exited the ELD program prior to the 2021-22 school year
made up 18.2 percent of all students in Oregon public schools and districts (as of the first school day in May
2022). They form a vital part of our student communities and bring a variety of cultural and linguistic assets
that enrich our schools and districts. This report describes this diverse population of students, examines their
academic progress and achievement, and summarizes information about key aspects of the education they
receive in our state.

Why this report?

ORS 327.016 directs the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) to prepare an annual report on English
learner program funding and student outcomes. The report’s intention is to describe the population of
English Learners in Oregon and provide a summary of district and state progress towards meeting their needs

and objectives in ELD programs. ORS 327.016 requires ODE to include the following information in the annual
report:

e English learner student demographics;

e Length of participation in ELD programs;

e Participation in special education and related services; and
e Other information identified by the ODE.

In addition, the annual report must include the following financial information:

* Allocations to each school district from the State School Fund for students enrolled in ELD programs;
e The extent to which districts expend these allocations for students enrolled in ELD programs; and
e The categories of expenditures for ELD program funding.

Each annual report looks back at the prior school year, which for this year is the 2021-22 school year. This
report will be available on the ODE website, submitted to House and Senate Education Committees, and
provided to district school boards. State law requires the report to be available to the public at each district's
main office and on district websites.

Definitions

ORS 327.016 describes students who receive English language instruction, supports, and services as part of
an ELD program as English learners. While these students are learning English in an ELD program, the English
learner label only focuses on a singular dimension (i.e., learning English) and does not reflect the linguistic
and cultural assets of the students (Garcia, 2009). Thus, although this report will use the English Learner label
in order to comply with ORS 327.016, we recognize these students are multilingual and value their linguistic
and cultural assets.

The ODE annually reports four groups of English learners: current, former, ever, and never English learners.
Current English learners are multilingual students who were learning English in an ELD program during the



539

English Learners in Oregon

2021-22 school year?®. Former English learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to the 2021-22 school year. Ever English learners are the
combination of both current and former English learners. Finally, never English learners are monolingual or
multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in
an ELD program before or during the 2021-22 school year.

Structure of this report

This report consists of five sections:
Section 1: Demographics of English Learners
Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs
Section 3: Language Development and Academic Achievement
Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond
Section 5: State Revenues and Expenditures for English Learners

Several aspects of this year’s report differ from the reports the ODE issued in previous years. For example,
where appropriate, this report provides comparisons to never English learners (i.e., students not eligible to
receive services from an ELD program). Furthermore, in addition to describing statewide patterns, in some
cases the report indicates which districts serve high percentages of certain types of students (e.g., students
participating in migrant education programs). Finally, this year’s report provides data insights into Student
Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics that were not available during the period
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.

? Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction,
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English
language instruction, supports, and services.



540

English Learners in Oregon

Section 1: Demographics of English Learners in Oregon in 2020-21

Almost one in five Oregon students has been designated as an English learner. As of the first school day in
May 2022, 546,726 students enrolled in Oregon public schools and districts. Among those students, 10.4
percent were current English learners (56,683 students), 7.8 percent were former English learners (42,770
students), and 81.8 percent were never English learners (447,273 students). Both current and former English
learners were an incredibly diverse student population in 2021-22 (representing 18.2 percent of all students).
These students brought a rich linguistic and cultural heritage to their classrooms, schools, and communities.
This section summarizes the demographics of Oregon’s English learner population, considering grade levels,

interruptions in formal education among newcomer immigrant students, and racial, ethnic, and linguistic
diversity.

Current and Former English Learners

Current English Learners are multilingual students who are learning English in an ELD program during the
school year®. They receive English language instruction, supports, and services because they are to help them
become proficient in English. I dentification of English learners is done using a Language use Survey (LUS) as
well as an English Language Proficiency Assessment (ELPA) screener. In 2021-22, 56,683 of Oregon’s 546,726
K-12 students, or 10.4 percent, were current English learners* (see figure 1).

Figure 1. Percentage of all Oregon students who were current English Learners (2016-17 to 2021-22)

14
12 - 93 JA
= [ ——ee e o R O 5 - e

g 102- Cao 956

6

4

2

0

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

A smaller number of students in 2021-22 (42,770 or 7.8%) were former English learners. Former English
learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to
the 2021-22 school year. Research does suggest, however, that former English learners may still need
support to develop high levels of proficiency in academic English (i.e., the language students need in order to
be successful in school; see de Jong 2004; Flores, Batalova & Fix, 2012). Districts are required to monitor the
academic progress for four years following an English learner exiting as proficient from the English language
development program per ESSA Title Ill. Given its importance, during its monitoring process, ODE reviews

* Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction,
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English
language instruction, supports, and services.

4 The data for this portion of the report relies on student enrollments as of the first school day in May 2022.

8



541

English Learners in Oregon

the ways in which the districts monitor the progress of former English learners and provides them with
feedback to enhance the districts’ ability to support former English learners continued progress.

Comparisons between current, former, ever, and never English learners are useful to understand the
experiences and outcomes of English learners over time, and to counter misperceptions about English learner
achievement. Current English Learners tend to perform at lower levels while still developing English,
particularly on assessments of content knowledge that are administered in English, which can negatively
impact their performance. However, once current English learners attain English language proficiency, they
often perform academically at significantly higher levels than their peers, including monolingual English
speakers indicating the value of bilingualism (Thompson, Umansky, & Rew, 2022; Hopkins, Thompson,
Linquanti, Hakuta, & August, 2013).

Oregon has had a largely stable population of approximately 100,000 English learners (former and current)
over the past several years. Figure 2 shows the change in the count of current, former, and ever English
learners in Oregon over the last six school years. In general, it displays a slightly fluctuating population of ever
English learners in Oregon, starting at 103,605 in 2016-17 and, after increasing and declining for a couple
years, reaching 99,453 students in 2021-22.

Figure 2. Number of current, former, and ever English Learners in Oregon (2016-17 to 2021-22)

120000 103 605 1 102,797 102,340 99,453

AN
100000 JIIIJII|r||III|||PIllllllillllli!illll"""I\Illllllilllllrlllllll\l'/
102,553 \103,968

53,677
60000 N~ 51,967 51,124 7 53488 > [ 56,683
- T - -.v-‘—‘-'-"‘-‘—”---/‘l-“'- R " e
40000 / ~ ==
: 50,586 51,673 50,480 48,663 42,770
20000 45,330
0
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
=== Cyrrent English Learners = = = Former English Learners v Ever English Learners

The majority of current English Learners were in the elementary grades.

Although there were current English learners at every grade level, approximately two-thirds (61.1%) were in
kindergarten through fifth grade. Far fewer current English learners were in middle school (grades 6-8;
19.7%) or in high school (grades 9-12; 19.2%). Figure 3 shows the percent of current and former English
learners by grade in 2021-22. As the grade level increases from kindergarten to twelfth grade, the percent of
current English learners decreases as they attain English proficiency and exit their ELD programs
(subsequently, this results in an increase of former English learners). For example, across the elementary
grades, the percentage of elementary students who are English learners ranges from 63.2 percent to 100
percent, while in the secondary grades it ranges from 39.5 percent to 51.5 percent, and in high school it
ranges from 25.9 percent to 36.2 percent.



542

English Learners in Oregon

Figure 3. Comparison of the percentage of current and former English learners by grade in 2021-22

o
© 4
L £
wll
o
3
o 8 ] B 5
3 . e
n 1 5
G : 3
%‘ 5 R
s ¥
Q
o
[= T o
~ i
e |6
‘| 8 Current English Learners |
.| B Former English Leamers
. T | R | o | S

K6 1 2 3 4 &5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Grade

English Learner enroliment was not uniform across Oregon districts.

Oregon has 197 school districts. In 2021-22, 146 districts provided English language instruction, supports, and
services to current English learners Over 80 districts participate in Title 11l funds in a consortium as these
districts have fewer than 65 identified English learners and therefore do not generate the federally required
$10,000 minimum Title Il sub-grant. These districts with small EL populations may experience challengers
with the students being enrolled across several grade levels, may have different Englis h language proficiency
levels, or may have limited ELD teachers. The remaining districts in Oregon currently do not have any
enrolled English learners.

Figure 4 shows the distribution of current English learners across Oregon districts in 2021-22. There were
eight districts with more than 2,000 current English learners. Thus, in 2021-22, districts differed in terms of
both the number of current English learners and/or the percentage of their student population who received
English language instruction, supports, and services.

Statewide, about a quarter of Oregon districts (n = 46) provided English language instruction, supports, and
services to between 1 and 19 current English learners. This suggests these districts have too few current
English learners to be independently eligible for specific improvement efforts under state and federal

10



English Learners in Oregon

543

accountability initiatives. However, such districts can always form or join a consortium of districts to become

eligible for the improvement efforts under state and federal accountability initiatives.

A sizable proportion of Oregon districts did not have any current English learner enrollments in 2021-22. The
47 districts not currently serving English learners tended to be small in overall population (median 142

students).

Figure 4. Comparison of the number and percentage of current English learners by district in 2021-22

FN
15

©
(2

w o w B
o u o
e
®

L39]

Percent of Current English Learners
S

2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000
Current English Learner Count

This variation across districts is also evident in table 1, which shows the ten districts with the highest
numbers of current English learners.

Table 1. Districts with the highest number of current
English learners in 2021-22

i Number of
i Name Current English Learners
Salem-Keizer SD 7,499
Beaverton SD 5,510
Portland SD 4,100
Hillsboro SD 3,693
Reynolds SD 2,878
Woodburn SD 2,173
David Douglas SD 2,140
North Clackamas SD 2,012
Gresham-Barlow SD 1,505
Tigard-Tualatin SD 1,404

()

8,000

In addition, table 2 shows the 10 districts with the highest percentage of current English learners. Note that

Woodburn and Reynolds appear on both lists.

11



544

English Learners in Oregon

Table 2. Districts with the highest percentage of current
English learners in 2021-22

s Percentage of
e Current Eng!is: Learners
Woodburn SD 41.5%
Umatilla SD 30.7%
Reynolds SD 29.7%
Nyssa SD 27.5%
Centennial SD 24.8%
David Douglas SD 24.6%
Milton-Freewater 24.4%
Unified SD
Morrow SD 24.0%
Gervais SD 22.5%
Hood River County SD 21.8%

The number of recent arrivers declined in 2021-22.

The term recent arrivers refers to students who were born outside of the U.S. and Puerto Rico, and who have
been educated in the U.S. for fewer than three cumulative years (i.e., these students are recent immigrants).
They can be current, former, or never English learners; however, the majority are current English learners.

In 2021-22, 4,145 current English learners were recent arrivers. This number represents the smallest count of
recent arrivers over the last six years and continues the reduction (likely due to the COVID pandemic) from
2019-20 (4,925; see figure 5).

Figure 5. Number of current English learners who were recent arrivers in Oregon (2016-17 to 2021-22)

10,000
8,000
6,000 e —— 4685 4,925
6,263 %':m-m%‘t\-&r.—:.—ma~ T AR T T T I - e 4"];45
4’000 j - “=-“*’P‘»amv'.m'1 ]
4,667 4,373
2,000
0
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Most recent arrivers (60.1%) were in the elementary grades, while 16.5 percent were in grades 6-8 and 22.4
percent were in high school. Current English learners who are recent arrivers in middle and high school
contend with significant challenges, since they have to learn the language while also using English-language
textbooks and lectures to learn the content of their courses in a variety of subject areas (Short &

12



545

English Learners in Oregon

Fitzsimmons, 2007). Recent arrivers in the secondary grades are known as adolescent newcomers, and
districts sometimes design specialized programs to serve their unique language and cultural needs.

Statewide, the total number of current English learners who were adolescent newcomers in 2021-22 was
1,614. Not all districts provided English language instruction, support, and services to adolescent newcomers;
however, five Oregon districts with the largest population of such students in 2021-22 are shown in Table 3.

Table 3. Districts with the largest population of adolescent newcomers in 2021-22

Number of Adolescent Newcomers
District (Recently Arrived Current English Learners in
Middle or High School)

Beaverton SD 48) 254

Salem-Keizer SD 24 166

Reynolds SD 7 120

David Douglas SD 40 100

Portland SD 1) 83

In 2021-22, districts reported 795 current English learners had experienced
interruptions in their education.

Some current and former English learners had their education interrupted or received limited formal
education before arriving in the U.S. school system. Often, these were immigrant or refugee students who
had spent time in refugee camps or whose process of immigration to the U.S. prevented them from attending
school for a time. These students are known as students with limited or interrupted formal education (often
abbreviated as SIFE or SLIFE). Students are SLIFE if they are immigrant students or English learners who enter
school in the U.S. after grade two and experience all of the following:

a. Have at least two fewer years of schooling than their peers of the same age,
b. Function at least two years below grade level expectations in reading and mathematics, and
c. Arepreliterate in their native language.®

SLIFE students face unique circumstances. In addition to having missed at least two years of schooling, some
arrive having experienced significant trauma. Schools need to find ways to serve SLIFE students without
placing them in classes with younger students, since forming relationships with peers, including never English
learner peers, is a factor that appears to improve academic outcomes (Browder, 2014).

The ODE began collecting data on the number of students with limited or interrupted formal education in
2015-16. For the 2021-22 school year, districts reported 795 current English learners with limited or
interrupted formal education (about 1.4 percent of all current English learners). As figure 6 il lustrates, the
number of students with limited or interrupted formal education increased from 2016-17 to 2019-20 but
decreased in 2020-21 and once again increased in 2021-22.

5 See ESEA Title Ill English Learner Definitions for more details.

13



546

English Learners in Oregon

Figure 6. Number of current English learners with an interrupted formal education (2016-17 to 2021-22)

1,000 885
\
.M.‘nwmmm
800 e 7""’%1_-,‘\_‘: 690
660 o ” e, M
— s 866 .
795
600 N
666
400
200
0
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Most students with limited or interrupted formal education were in high school (60.8%). Another 27.7
percentwere in the middle school grades (grades 6-8), and only 11.6 percent were in the elementary grades.

In 2021-22, the distribution of current English learners with limited or interrupted formal education was not
uniform across Oregon districts. Instead, current English learners with limited or interrupted formal
education were, for the most part, concentrated in a few districts. Eight districts in Oregon, identified in table
4, provided English language instruction, supports, and services to at least 20 current English learners with
limited or interrupted formal education in 2021-22. These eight districts alone enrolled 81 percent of all SLIFE
students in Oregon. Note that three of the eight districts serving many adolescent newcomers (see table 3)
also enroll a significant numbers of current English learners with interrupted formal education (i.e., Portland,
Beaverton, and Reynolds).

Table 4. Districts serving at least 20 current English learners with interrupted formal education in 2021-22

District Number of Current English Learners with
Limited or Interrupted Formal Education

Hillsboro SD 1) 235

Hermiston SD 8 106

Portland SD 1) 81

Beaverton SD 48) 70

Reynolds SD 7 56

Woodburn SD 103 45

Morrow SD 1 30

South Lane SD 45J3 21

Current English learners across the state spoke 199 unique home languages.

Statewide, current English learners spoke about 199 different languages at home. By far the most prevalent
home language among Oregon current English learners was Spanish, spoken at home by 76.3 percent of all
current English learners. The four next most common languages were Russian, Vietnamese, Chinese, and
Arabic. Taken together, these top five languages represent 84.7 percent of home languages among current
English learners (see table 5). In recent years, the number of current English learners speaking Somali,
Mesoamerican languages, and other languages has been increasing.

14



547

English Learners in Oregon

In 2020, ODE expanded the language of origin reporting options to include an additional 384 languages; many
of which were Mesoamerican languages such as Mam, Q'anjobal, and K’iche. This was intended to reduce the
prevalence of districts reporting an unknown home language. However, in 2021-22, districts reported an
unidentified home language for 1,348 students, suggesting a need for more training and support in this area.

Table 5. Most prevalent home languages among current English learners in 2021-22

T Udes Number of Currfe nt English Percentage f’f Cu frent English
Learners with this Language Learners with this Language
Spanish 43,419 76.6%
Russian 1,345 2.37%
Vietnamese 1,251 2.21%
Chinese 1,200 2.12%
Arabic 830 1.46%
Chuukese 688 1.21%
Somali 600 1.06%
English® 561 0.99%
Ukrainian 417 0.74%
lapanese 367 0.65%
Marshallese 352 0.62%
Korean 269 0.47%

Home languages other than Spanish tend to concentrate in a few districts. Figure 6 provides a map
illustrating the number of different home languages in different Oregon districts. A few districts, mostly in the
Portland metropolitan area and Salem, provide English language instruction, supports, and services to
students with over 60 unique home languages.

8 All 561 current English Learners with English as the home language were American Indian/Alaska Native students.

15



548

English Learners in Oregon

Figure 7. Geographic distribution current English learner home languages across Oregon districts during
2021-22

Unique Count of
Home Languages

The vast majority of current English learners were Latina/o/x.

Of the 56,683 current English learners in Oregon during the 2021-22 school year, 43,629 (77%) were
Latina/o/x. About 7.3 percent were White and 8.6 were Asian, while smaller percentages were Black /African
American, Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, American Indian/Alaska Native, and Multi-Racial (see figure 8).

Figure 8. Percentage of current English learners by race/ethnicity in 2021-22

w—

Latinafo/x e A R B S e O A N RS I e 77 0
Asian ESEEISE 8.7
White mEmEm 7.3
Black/African American B 29
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander B2 2.4
American Indian/Alaska Native [ 0.8

Multi-Racial & 1.0

0.0 10.0 20.0 30.0 40.0 50.0 60.0 70.0 80.0
Itis important to note that most Latina/o/x students in Oregon were not current English learners. In fact,

according to figure 9, only 31.7 percent of Latina/o/x students were current English learners in 2021-22.
Moreover, 30.3 percent of Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander students were current English learners.

16



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 9. Percentage of each racial/ethnic group who were current English learners in 2021-22

Latina/o/x

Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander
Asian SRR T IR RS RETITIIY, 22.1
Black/African American FEEITSIESETETRERANENIETE 13.0
American Indian/Alaska Native mimsmmmssTms 7.6
Multi-Racial #=1 1.4
White =2 1.3

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs

Schools and districts deliver a range of programs that aim to address the needs of particular groups of
students. These include free or reduced price meals, special education, migrant education, and TAG
programs. Most of these programs receive some federal funding; however, TAG programs receive only state
funding. This section of the report describes the participation of English learners in each of these programs
during the 2021-22 school year.

Free or Reduced Price Meals

Students who come from low-income families (those earning below 185 percent of the federal poverty line)
are eligible for free or reduced price meals. The percentage of students receiving free or reduced price meals
is an estimate of the level of poverty or economic disadvantage in a school. It is an imprecise measure, since
some eligible students and families never apply to the program; however, it provides the best data currently
available to compare poverty and economic disadvantage levels across schools and districts.

However, as mentioned in the statewide annual report card (2022), “due to COVID-19, USDA issued a suite of
waivers for the School Nutrition Program for the 2020-21 and 2021-22 school years that allowed meals to be
served at no cost to all children and eliminated the need for schools to collect Free and Reduced Price Lunch
eligibility data. Therefore, there is no accurate eligibility data available for 2021-22” (p. 54).

As a reminder, however, the latest data prior to the COVID-19 pandemic (2019-20) are provided in figure 10.
According to the figure, current and former English learners were much more likely than never English
learners to be eligible for free or reduced price meals. This suggested that households for current and former
English learners were more likely to experience poverty and economic disadvantage. Overall, 86.6 percent of
current English learners came from economically disadvantaged households.

17

549



550

English Learners in Oregon

Figure 10. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners receiving free or reduced price meals
in 2019-20

Current English Learners

Former English Learners

Never English Learners

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Special Education

Students who are current English learners and receive special education services and supports are known as
dual-identified students, since they receive instruction, supports, and services from two programs (i.e.,
English language and special education).

There is concern in the field about the difficulty of accurately identifying current English learners who need
special education services and supports. Schools may incorrectly identify current English learners as having a
learning disability when, in fact, it is their developing English proficiency that adversely influences their
educational progress. On the other hand, some schools may overlook genuine disabilities, assuming that
current English learners just need more time to learn English. Both identification challenges are prevalent not
only in Oregon but across the United States (Artiles & Ortiz, 2002; Hamayan, Marler, Sanchez Lopez &
Damico, 2007; Umansky, Thompson, & Diaz, 2017).

Ever English learners and never English learners received special education services

and supports at about the same rate.

As figure 11 illustrates, a far higher rate of current English learners (21.1%) received special education
services and supports as compared to former (7.4%) and never English learners (15.2%). However, the
percentage of ever English learners (the combination of current and former English learners) receiving
services and supports is very similar to that for never English learners.

18



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 11. Percentage of current, former, never, and ever English learners receiving special education
services and supports in 2021-22

Current English Learners
Never English Learners

Ever English Learners

Former English Learners

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0

The percentage of current English learners receiving special education remained
consistent in 2021-22.

In 2021-22, 11,508 current English learners (20.3%) were receiving special education supports and services.
The number of current English learners receiving special education services and supports in 2021-22

represents aslight decrease from the year before, when 21.1 percent of current English learners received
special education services and supports (see figure 12).

Figure 12. Percentage of current English learners receiving special education services and supports (2016-
17 t0 2021-22)

25.0
23.0
213 21.1
21.0 . — ¢
. - —_ -‘%a’n%h
184 e .ﬁ 210 P
19.0 4 6 20.3
17.0
15.0
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Most English learners with a disability in 2021-22 had a specific learning disability (3,590 students) or a
speech or communication disorder (2,992 students) as their primary disability.” Other primary disabilities, in
order of frequency in 2021-22, included other health impairments, autism, intellectual disability, emotional
behavior disability, deaf or hard of hearing, orthopedic impairment, visual impairments including blindness,
traumatic brain injury, and deaf-blindness.

7 A specific learning disability refers to a disorder in one or more of the basic psychological processes involved in
understanding or using language that may manifest itself in difficulties in listening, thinking, speaking, reading,
writing, spelling, or doing math calculations. A speech or language impairment refers to a communication disorder
such as stuttering, impaired articulation, or a language or voice impairment that adversely affects a students’
learning or educational performance.

19

551



552

English Learners in Oregon

Migrant Education

Some English learners also participate in migrant education programs. Students are eligible for migrant
education programs if students aged 3-21 can qualify for the Title 1-C program, or/and if they or their parents
are engaging in qualifying agricultural or fishing work, and they have moved within the past 36 months to
obtain or seek this type of work. Many migrant children experienced poverty, and when they move, they
confront the challenges of having to adjust to different teachers with different instructional approaches and
materials, as well as building new social connections. The intent of migrant education programs is to ensure
that migrant children receive the support that addresses their unique situations and are able to receive
supports necessary to succeed academically.

9 percent of current English learners were eligible for Title 1-C Migrant Education
Programs services in 2021-22,

Oregon has one of the largest migratory student populations nationally. Across the state in the 202 1-22,
5,114 current English learners participated in migrant education programs. That number translates to 9.0
percent of all current English learners. It also means that more than half (51.4 percent) of the 9,947 students
in migrant education programs were current English Learners in 2021-22. Moreover, 37.4 percent of students
in migrant education programs in 2021-22 were former English learners. This also implies that 88.8 percent of
the 9,947 students who received services from migrant education programs were ever English learners.?

Approximately 97 districts received federal funds in the 2021-22 school year to support their migrant
education programs. Districts that did not receive federal funding in 2021-22 did not have eligible students
enrolled in their schools and programs. Ten districts with the largest population of English learners
participating in their migrant education program in 2021-22 (see table 6).

Table 6. Districts with the largest number of English learners participating in migrant education programs
in 2021-22

S Number of Current ELs in i Number of Current ELs in
ot Migrant Education et Migrant Education
Salem-Keizer SD 24) 513 Klamath County SD 164
Woodburn SD 103 426 Hood River County SD 149
Hillsboro SD 1J 386 Phoenix-Talent SD 4 145
Medford SD 549C 360 Eagle Point SD 9 142
Forest Grove SD 15 280 Beaverton SD 48) 138

Talented and Gifted

The state requires that all school districts establish policies and procedures to identify students to participate
in TAG programs. These students may have high general intelligence and/or demonstrate unusual academic
ability in one or more particular areas. State law requires districts to develop a plan to provide programs and
services beyond regular school programs in order to ensure that eligible students can develop and realize
their potential (OAR 581-022-2500).

® The data for this portion of the report relies on student enrollments as of the first school day in May 2022,

20



553

English Learners in Oregon

Correctly identifying students for TAG programs and providing specialized services is important because
these students may have both unique talents and face unique challenges. For example, some TAG students
struggle with perfectionism and the ability to cope with failure. Others engage only selectively at school and
have high levels of absenteeism. Recent findings from the ODE suggest that approximately 10 percentof TAG
students drop out of high school (Allen, 2016).

Current English Learners were rarely identified for TAG Programs.

According to figure 13, 6.5 percent of never English learners (29,092 students) were eligible for TAG programs
in 2021-22. While 4.9 percent of former English learners were eligible (2,107 students) and 5.3 percent of
ever English learners were eligible (2,336 students), less than 1 percent (0.4%%) of current English learners
were eligible for TAG programs in 2021-22 (229 students). Never English learners were over 16.2 times more
likely to be eligible for TAG programs than current English learners in 2021-22.

Figure 13. Percentage of current, former, ever, and never English learners who participated in a TAG
program in 2021-22

Never English Learners

Former English Learners [ i e et 4 9

Ever English Learners

Current English Learners

Section 3: Language Development and Academic Outcomes for English Learners

Students who are current English learners have to develop proficiency in English. In addition and at the same
time, they must learn all the same academic content as other students in Oregon. This section of the report
provides data about English language proficiency and academic outcomes of current English learners (with
comparisons to former, ever, and never English learners).

Progress towards English Language Proficiency

Title I-A of the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) requires current English learners to take an English
language proficiency assessment (ELPA) annually. The ELPA measures a student’s proficiency in the domains
of listening, reading, speaking, and writing. Students who demonstrate proficiency on all four ELPA domains
are ready to exit the ELD program. Since 2017-18, the ODE monitors whether current English learners are on
track to attain English language proficiency using a trajectory expectation model. Current English learners are
on track if their current ELPA domain performance meets or exceeds trajectory expectations given (1) initial
ELPA domain performance, (2) years identified as a current English learner, and (3) disability and/or an
interrupted formal education status. These expectations are in line with trajectory expectations indicated by
research on English learners (see Hakuta, Goto Butler, & Witt, 2000; Robinson Cimpian, Thompson, &

21



English Learners in Oregon

Umansky, 2016; Umansky & Reardon, 2014), as well as SIFE, and dual-identified English learners (see Burke,
Morita-Mullaney, & Singh, 2016; Conger, 2009; Kieffer & Parker, 2016; Thompson, 2015; Umansky &
Reardon, 2014). Interested readers are also referred to the Oregon’s ESSA Consolidated State Plan (2017) for
Oregon’s trajectory expectations (pp. 43-44).

According to figure 14, as the grade level increases, the percentage of current English learners on track to
attain English language proficiency decreases from 53.2 percent in elementary school grades to 25.4 percent
in high school grades. Furthermore, the same pattern is evident for current English learners with disabilities
where the percentage decreases from 35.4 percent in elementary school grades to 8.9 percent in high school
grades. To some extent, the decrease in the percentage of current English learners on track to attain English
language proficiency from elementary to high school grades is not a surprise due to the annual exiting of
current English learners. This has a considerable impact on the composition of current English learners across
grade levels. Thus, inferences and comparisons across grade levels and between groups of current English
learners (e.g., those with and without disabilities) must use caution.

Figure 14. Percentage of all current English learners and current English learners with disabilities on track
to attain English language proficiency by elementary (K-5), middle (6-8), and high school grades (9-12) in
2021-22
100
80
60
40

29.8

20

0

6-8

i All Current English Learners B Current English Learners with Disabilities

Long-term current English learners made up 21.2 percent of all current English

learners.

Parents and communities have concerns about the ability of Oregon’s schools and districts to ensure current
English learners attain English language proficiency and exit an ELD program within an appropriate amount of
time. Current English learners who are unable to meet proficiency expectations after a period of time are
known as long-term current English Learners. The ODE defines a long-term current English learner as a
student who receives English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program for more than
Seven years.

In2021-22, most current English learners (78.8%) were not long-term current English learners; however, this
means that 21.2 percent of current English learners received English language instruction, supports, and
services for more than seven years. This is a concern because slower development of English language
proficiency is highly predictive of other academic challenges (Menken & Kleyn, 2009; Danahy Ebert & Reilly,
2022). An important point to consider is the ability of Oregon’s schools and districts to meet the needs of

22

554



555

English Learners in Oregon

current English learners. This is particularly salient given that 39.8 percent of current English learners with

disabilities received English language instruction, supports, and services for more than seven years in 2021-
22.

Approximately 24 percent of current English learners receiving special education
services and supports developed English language proficiency in six years.

Itis also useful to look at the development of English language proficiency from another angle, namely, what
proportion of current English learners develop proficiency within a particular amount of time?

This measure uses data for all current English learners who received English language instruction, supports,
and services in an ELD program in 2021-22 regardless of the length, start, or end of enrollment. While most of
the data in this report rely on the first school day in May 2022 as a snapshot, this measure includes all current
English learners (even those not enrolled on the first school day in May 2022).

Figure 15 addresses this question for current English learners with and without disabilities. For current
English learners without disabilities who began receiving English language instruction, supports, and services
on or after July 1, 2015, the probability of reclassification (i.e., attaining English language proficiency and
exiting an ELD program) after six years is 0.65 (or, after multiplying by 100, 65%). That is, 65 percent of the
current English learners without disabilities attained English language proficiency and exited an ELD program
within six years. On the other hand, only 24 percent of current English learners with disabilities attained
English language proficiency and exited an ELD program with six years. Succinctly put, ELs without a disability

are, on average, over twice as much likely to exit the EL program within six years than their EL peers with a
disability.

Figure 15. Probability of reclassification for current English learners with and without disabilities within six
years (July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2022)

S
-

--- Without Disability
=== With Disability

08
1

0.6

- -

-
-

0.4

0.2

Cumulative Probability of Reclassification

.....

0.0

=
i
]
‘\
'.
L]

Years as Currenl English Learners

23



556

English Learners in Oregon

Student Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics

Each year, all Oregon students in grades 3-8 and 11 take state assessments in English language arts and
mathematics. These assessments, offered in English, may be especially challenging for ELs who are still
developing proficiency. For both subjects, a performance level of three or higher meets the state standards.

Former ELs performed similarly or slightly below never ELs in English language arts,
while few current ELs met or exceeded state standards.

At the elementary level (grade 3-5), 7.0 percent of current ELs met or exceeded state standards in English
language arts. In contrast, 50.5 percent of former ELs in elementary hit this benchmark. This was close to the
percentage of never ELs meeting or exceeding standards, 47.8 percent. In fact in many districts (74), a higher
percentage of former ELs, compared to never ELs, met benchmark in elementary English language arts.

At the middle school level (grades 6-8), 4.0 percent of current ELs met or exceeded state standards in English
language arts. Additionally, 38.7 percent of former ELs and 48.5 percent of never ELs met or exceeded
standards. In 39 districts, a higher percentage of former ELs, compared to never ELs, met benchmark.

Among high school students (grade 11), 6.1 percent of current ELs, 41.3 percent for former ELs, and 51.2
percent of never ELs met or exceeded state standards. At the high school level, there were 39 districts? in
which a higher percentage of former ELs than never ELs met the benchmark in English language arts.

° These districts include: Baker SD, Gladstone SD, Astoria SD, Coquille SD, Bandon SD, Elkton SD, City SD, Phoenix-
Talent SD, Ashland SD, Central Point SD, Eagle Point SD, Culver SD, Baker SD, Gladstone SD, Astoria SD, Coquille SD
Bandon SD, Elkton SD, Prairie City SD, Phoenix-Talent SD, Ashland SD, Central Point SD, Eagle Point SD, Culver SD,
Three Rivers/losephine County SD, Klamath, Falls City Schools, Klamath County SD, Fern Ridge SD, Creswell SD,
Bethel SD, Siuslaw SD, Harrisburg SD, Scio SD, Santiam Canyon SD, Adrian SD, Vale SD, Gervais SD, Jefferson SD,
Parkrose SD, Reynolds SD, Centennial SD, David Douglas SD, Dallas SD Milton-Freewater Unified SD, Stanfield SD,
Powder SD, Gaston SD, Mitchell SD, Sheridan SD, Knappa SD, lone SD.

’

24



English Learners in Oregon

557

Figure 16. Percentage of current, former and never ELs meeting or exceeding state standards in English
Language Arts in elementary, middle and high school, 2021-22%°

60

50

40

30

20

10

Grades 3-5

& Current English Learners

SRR G

A
A\

RS
N
\

S

N
A

o

=
N

NN
i

s

S
R

Grades 6-8 Grade 11

@ Former English Learners 7 Never English Learners

In math, former ELs performed below never ELs, especially in middle and high school,

while less than 10 percent of current EL met or exceeded state standards.

Atthe elementary level, 7.1 percent of current ELs met or exceeded standards in math (Figure 17). In
addition, 36.9 percent of former ELs met or exceeded standards in math. The percentage of never ELs
meeting or exceeding standards was somewhat higher, 39.2 percent.

Among middle school students, 2.6 percent of current ELs met or exceeded standards in math, compared to
20.9.2 percent of former ELs and 31.3 percent of never ELs.

Among students in grade 11, 1.8 percent of current ELs, 13.8 percent of former ELs, and 23.2 percent of
never ELs met or exceeded standards in math. At all levels and among all groups, fewer students met or
exceeded standards in math than in English language arts.

%9n this chart, the group “current EL” includes only students who were classified as current ELs at the time of
testing. In some other state accountability reports, the performance of current and recently reclassified ELs are

reported together.

25



558

English Learners in Oregon

Figure 17. Percentage of current, former and never ELs meeting or exceeding state standards in
mathematics in elementary, middle and high school, 2021-221

50
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
2.6

[ T

Grades 3-5 Grades 6-8 Grade 11

& Current English Learners @ Former English Learners 22 Never English Learners

Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond

This section of the report examines several important outcomes for English learners. These are attendance,
ninth grade progress towards graduation, four-year graduation, earning a Seal of Biliteracy, and
postsecondary enrollment.

Regular Attendance

In recent years, researchers and educators alike have devoted increasing attention to ensuring students
attend school on a regular basis. Research has shown that even moderate levels of absenteeism can have a
profound impact on students’ grades, performance on standardized assessments, graduation rates, and
success in college (Allensworth & Evans, 2016; Ginsburg, Jordan, & Chang, 2014). In Oregon, students exhibit
“regular attendance” at school if they attend more than 90 percent of school days during the school year.

Among elementary grades in 2021-22, former and never English learners have the highest levels of regular
attendance (see figure 18). Current English learners, on the other hand, have lower rates of regular
attendance in elementary, middle, and high school grades. In fact, regular attendance rates decline
considerably for current, former, and never English learners in middle and high school grades (with current
and former English learners declining by approximately 17 and 23 percentage points between elementary
and high school grades).

1 Also in this chart, the group “current EL” includes only students who were classified as current ELs at the time of
testing.

26



559

English Learners in Oregon

Figure 18. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners regularly attending school by
elementary (K-5), middle (6-8), and high school grades (9-12) in 2021-22

100
76.1
80 77 68.7 68.8 673
! 2 . 58.5
60 _ V% 538 7™
40 / 7 / 7
K-5 6-8 9-12
& Current English Learners @ Former English Learners Never English Learners
On Track to Graduate

Around the country, states and districts track whether students in the 9" grade are on track to graduate
within four years. They do this because ninth grade is a critical year for determining whether students will
ultimately graduate from high school; identifying students who are not on track allows schools to provide
supports and interventions to help keep students in school and progressing towards graduation. In Oregon,
students in the 9" grade are on track to graduate if they earn at least six credits or 25 percent of the credits
their district requires for graduation. However, one should note that ODE’s data is limited to the number of
credits earned and not the specific courses credits earned. From 2016-17 to 2021-22, a higher percentage of
former and never English learners were on-track to graduate compared to current English learners.!2

According to figure 19, former and never English learners in 9* grade are on track to graduate at substantially
higher percentages than current English learners from 2017-18 to 2021-22. Former and never English
learners have very similar percentages. Their gap shrinks from 1.1 percentage points in 2017-18 t0 0.8
percentage points in 2018-19. Indeed, the gap between former and never English learners completely closes
in 2021-22. From 2017-18 to 2018-19, current, former, and never English learners exhibited some
improvement in the percentage of students on-track to graduate. Current English learners’ rates improves by
1.2 percentage points. Despite a considerable decline in 2020-21 due to the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, all three groups of students experience a sizeable improvement in 2021-22 with the current and
former English learners increasing by 14.2 and 13.4 percentage points since 2020-21. It must be noted also
that as part of Senate Bill 744 passed in 2021, these students were not required to demonstrate proficiency
for three of the nine essential skills as one of their non-credit graduation requirements.

2 Data representing the percentage of current, former, and never English learners who were on track to graduate
in ninth grade were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability is due to the
State of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of data collections that either capture
the specific data or support the calculation of this measure at the district and state levels),

27



560

English Learners in Oregon

Figure 19. Percentage of 9" grade current, former, and never English learners on track to graduate within
four years (2017-18 to 2021-22)

100 85.3 — Bies
. \ T N T ) Y 83.8
80 f-- 854—/5.“"“"“5-'5.*'.“'“4.,. .'.-’.Sﬁ-‘*.;.'.."-duh'-"""'{
84.2 “ L:b”:m-—u:_,:_ - -_-/" -- - 83.8
£69.6 N 68.5
40 54.3
20
0
2017-18 2018-19 2020-21 2021-22
emmememe Current English Learners = = = Former English Learners vvroor Never English Learners
Four-Year Graduation

The ODE uses a cohort adjusted graduation rate to examine and monitor the percentage of students
graduating within a specific number of years. The data for this section relies on the four-year cohort adjusted
graduation rate for current, former, and never English learners. For the purposes of reporting graduation
data to the public, current English learners are multilingual students who received English language
instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any time during high school. Former English learners
are multilingual students who attained English language proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to
entering high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive
English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their
parents or guardians waived services. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual English or multilingual
students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD
program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve.

Former English learners graduated at rates similar to or better than never English learners; however,
substantially fewer current English learners graduated in four years.

According to figure 20, former and never English learners graduate in four years at relatively similar rates;
however, although similar, the rate for former English learners was higher from 2015-16 to 2021-22. Indeed,
consistently since years 2015-16, the four-year graduation rate for former English learners was higher than
the rate for never English learners.

Current English learners, on the other hand, graduated in four years at lower rates than former and never
English learners; however, it is important to note that the four-year graduation rate for current English
learners has grown considerably from 2015-16 to 2021-22 (an increase of 12.4 percentage points).

28



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 20. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners graduating within four years (2015-16
to 2021-22).

100
80 .- - H‘-“-,,--- 1-- |--n|-|--n llll 'w-l-nu-||.|-|-||.474-s<-u-|-
NG S~ 7. “- 803 \_831 Negra L817
60 755 2 - = L
S o L 602 646 64.4 65.3
40 529 54.9 55.8
20
0
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
===sm== Current English Learners = = =« Former English Learners tr1o Never English Learners

Current English learners graduating in four years were over 2.7 times more likely
to receive a modified diploma

Modified diplomas are designed for students who meet certain criteria listed in OAR 581-022-2010. Modified
diplomas require fewer credits to graduate compared to a regular high school diploma. Among the current
English learners who graduated in four years in 2021-22 (i.e., 1,841 students), 202 students (11%) received a
modified diploma (see table 7). By contrast, among the former English learners that graduated in 4 years in
2021-22 (i.e., 5,435 students), 117 students (2.2%) received a modified diploma. Finally, among the never

English learners who graduated in four years in 2021-22 (i.e., 30,535 students), 1,216 students (4%) received
a modified diploma.

In addition, among the students that graduated in four years in 2021-22, current English learners were more
than 2.7 times (11 percent <+ 4%) more likely to receive a modified diploma compared to that for never
English learners. Indeed, this ratio increases to 3.4 times (15.4 percent <+ 4.5%) for cohorts that graduated in
five years.

Table 7. Percentage of students receiving regular vs. modified dlplomas

: Student (Diplnma Type) : o5 Four-Year Cohort Flve~Year Cohort
Current English Learners (Modified) 11% 15.4%
Former English Learners (Modified) 2.2% 2.7%
Never English Learners (Modified) 4.0% 4.5%
Current English Learners (Regular) 89.0% 84.6%
Former English Learners (Regular) 97.8% 97.3%
Never English Learners (Regular) 96.0% 95.5%

Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy

The Seal of Biliteracy offers recognition of the many cognitive, academic, and economic benefits of
bilingualism. Students can earn a Seal of Biliteracy on their diplomas if they meet the following requirements:

e Meet all graduation requirements, and

29

561



562

English Learners in Oregon

e score at the intermediate high level in listening, speaking, reading, and writing in a partner language.

The data for this section rely on students who graduated in 2021-22 (and were part of the four-year cohort
adjusted graduation rate) as the denominator in calculations. Moreover, this section will examine the count
and percentage of current, former, and never English learners®® who earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-22.

The majority of students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-22 were ever
English learners and never English learners who are native speakers of languages in
addition to English.

Of the 37,814 students who graduated in 2021-22, 2,078 students (about 5.5%) also earned the Seal of
Biliteracy. Among those 2,078 students, 44.8 percent were never English learners, 44.6 percent were former
English learners, and 10.6 percent were current English learners (see figure 21). In other words, 55.2 percent
of those who earned the Seal of Biliteracy were ever English learners. Note that the majority of students who
earn the Seal of Biliteracy are (1) ever English learners and (2) never English learners who are native speakers
of languages in addition to English.

Figure 21. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-
22 (among all students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy)

Never English Learners

Former English Learners mi 44.6

Current English Learners
0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0 40.0 45.0 50.0

According to figure 22, among former English learners who graduated in 2021-22, 17 percent earned the Seal
of Biliteracy. Moreover, 12 percent of current English learner graduates earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-
22. This means that, among ever English learners who graduated in 2021-22, 29 percent also earned the Seal
of Biliteracy.

 For the purposes of reporting Seal of Biliteracy data in this report, current English learners are multilingual
students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any time during
high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive English language
instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their parents or guardians
waived services. Former English learners are multilingual students who attained English language proficiency and
exited an ELD program prior to entering high school. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual English or
multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in an
ELD program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve.

30



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 22. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-
22 (among current, former, and never English learner graduates)

Former English Learners

R 0 T
o '*V.«",'.‘ﬂ?t’-

Current English Learners S e e v

Never English Learners

0.0 2.0 4.0 6.0 8.0 10.0 12.0 14.0 16.0 18.0

Students earned the Seal of Biliteracy for their knowledge of 20 different partner

languages; however, Spanish was the most common partner language.

More than three-quarters of students earning the Seal of Biliteracy (78.2%) had Spanish as their partner
language. The next three partner languages, in order of the number of students, were French, Chinese, and
Korean, all with 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy in that language. Spanish, Chinese, Korean,
and Russian were the partner languages with the most current and former English learners earning the Seal
of Biliteracy. On the other hand, the top three partner languages among never English learners who earned
the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-22 were Spanish, French, Japanese, and Chinese.

Nine districts had 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy.

In 2021-22, nine districts had 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy (see table 7). Moreover,
among Woodburn’s students who graduated in 2021-22, 53.6 percent earned the Seal of Biliteracy. Three
other districts in 2021-22 had 10 percent or more of their high school graduates earning the Seal of Biliteracy.

Table 7. Districts with 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-2214

T A Number S " Number
District 2 L vh e 50 of Students gty £ E 6f$tudenﬁs
Portland SD 1J 344 Corvallis SD 5091 91
Beaverton SD 48) 330 North Clackamas SD 12 81
Salem-Keizer SD 24) 193 Hillsboro SD 1J 79
Woodburn SD 103 156 West Linn-Wilsonville SD 3J 68
Eugene SD 4] 93

Postsecondary Enroliment

The ODE annually examines and publicly reports the percentage of high school graduates who enroll in
postsecondary education institutions in Oregon and across the U.S. (e.g., public and private, 2-year and 4-

¥ Note that the counts in this table reflect students who graduated in 2021-22 (and were part of the four-year
cohort adjusted graduation rate) and earned the Seal of Biliteracy. There were students who earned the Seal of
Biliteracy in 2021-22 but were part of the five-year cohort or another cohort.

31

563



English Learners in Oregon

year, etc.). A postsecondary education affords students a wide range of advantages, including greater
employment opportunities, financial security, opportunities to contribute in their community, and greater life
satisfaction. The data for this measure uses students who graduated in 2018-19 (and were part of the four-
year cohort adjusted graduation rate) as the denominator in calculations.** Moreover, this portion of the
report will examine the count and percentage of current, former, and never English learners® who enrolled
in a postsecondary education institution within 16 months after graduation.

Never English learners were more likely to enroll in postsecondary education
institutions than current English learners; however, former English learners had

comparable postsecondary enrollment rates as never English learners.

Figure 23 shows the postsecondary enrollment rates by graduation year for three groups of Oregon students.
The postsecondary enroliment rates for never English learners, represented by the gray dotted line, ranged
from 57.7 to 57.6 percent from 2014-15 to 2019-20. The salmon line displays the same information for
students who were current English Learners. Current English learners enrolled in postsecondary institutions
at substantially lower rates than never and former English learners. The postsecondary enrollment rates for
current English learners annually increased from 47.9 percent in 2014-15 to 49.2 percent in 2015-16;
however, they decreased in both 2016-17 and 2018-19 to levels similar to 2014-15. The black dashed line
shows the postsecondary enrollment rates for former English learners. The postsecondary enrollment rates
for former English learners increased from 58.4 percent in 2014-15 to 62.4 percent in 2015-16. Moreover,
since 2015-16, former English learners had postsecondary enroliment rates that were reasonably comparable
to never English learners.

1> post-secondary enrollment data for current, former, and never English learners who graduated from high school
in 2019-20 were unavailable as of the publication of this report.

1 For the purposes of reporting post-secondary enrollment data in this report, current English learners are
multilingual students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any
time during high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive English
language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their parents or
guardians waived services. Former English learners are multilingual students who attained English language
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to entering high school. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual
English or multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and
services in an ELD program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve.

32

564



565

English Learners in Oregon

Figure 23. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners enrolling in postsecondary institutions
within 16 months of high school graduation (2014-15 to 2019-20"7)

70.0 57.7 63.5 63.1 62.6

~ G3.8 57.6
o vl ﬂHthh\lll\l(lll1i (R pE (R P P e ¢
60.0 S e o e  ( LR NN iy,
ja 62.4 - 60.4 61.5 62.9 =
50.0 58.4 = ze - J—— 3
\ = S 54.4
40.0 479 49.2 46.7 \ 50.7
30.0 42.0 37.7
20.0
10.0
0.0
2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
emmmmes Current English Learners = = = Former English Learners v oo Never English Learners

Section 5: State Revenues and Expenditures for Current English Learners

Each year, Oregon’s State School Fund provides funding to districts through General Purpose Grants. The
amount of the grant relies on a formula that considers the number of students in the district (known as
average daily membership weighted or ADMw). On average, the per-pupil funding amount in 2021-22 was
$9,167.18 |n addition to this basic funding, districts receive additional state funds for each student enrolled in
an ELD program. This amount is 0.5 x $9,167 or 54,584 per current English learner. Altogether, the state
allocated $228,013,853 for these additional English learner funds in the 2021-22 school year.

Figure 24 depicts the relationship between current English learner revenues the state allocated to districts via
the State School Fund Formula and the total current English learner expenditures from the General Fund
expressed as a ratio. Statewide, the ratio of expenditures to revenues in 2021-22 was 0.86, meaning that
district expenditures on current English learners reflected 86 percent of the funds the state allocated to
districts via the State School Fund Formula. Some districts spent more than this percentage (up to 644%),
while others reported spending less (as little as 0%). The values on the extreme ends of the range, however,
may refléct variations in the way that some districts report data. Some districts with few current English
learners report revenue received from the state, but do not identify expenditures specific to current English
learners, even though they may expend funds for English learner services. Other districts on the high end of
the spending ratio may include expenses for dual-language programs that also educate former and never
English learners, rather than calculating the percentage spent solely on current English learners.

1 The year (e.g., 2019-20) represents the school year in which students graduated from high school.
B While $9,167 is the average amount, the grant amount can vary a bit for different districts because of the way
the formula is set up.

33



566

English Learners in Oregon

Figure 24. Ratio of current English learner expenditures to revenues across districts in 2021-22
7.00
6.00
5.00
4.00
3.00

2.00 0.86
i i
o oSN

As figure 25 illustrates, the statewide ratio increased steadily from 2015-16 to 2018-19; however, in 2019-20
through 2021-22, the ratio decreased below 1.0.

Figure 25. Ratio of statewide expenditures on current English learners to revenues (2015-16 to 2021-22)

1.20
0.92 < 104 0.95
100 = - w—\.. ! “‘ﬂuwm.,_m,‘u‘["n%‘w
———— 1.00 0.98 ,
0.80 9
0.83 0.86
0.60
0.40
0.20
0.00
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Expenditures from the General Fund on current English learners either belong to Function 1291 (covering
expenditures for instruction and interventions to help current English learners learn English) or Area of
Responsibility 280 (other supports for current English learners, such as interpretation services or
transportation). **

Current English learner expenditures for 2021-22 totaled $196,738,499. Districts accounted for
approximately 83.3 percent of the expenditures ($163,859,331) using Function 1291 and 16.7 percent of the
expenditures ($32,879,169) using Area of Responsibility 280.

In addition to this state funding, districts with at least 69 current English learners may access federal Title 111
grants, which in 2021-22 provided an additional $137.29 per student for supplemental current English learner
services?’. Additional information on the grant amounts is available on the ODE website under Title 111
Allocations.

¥ For a more detailed description of the accounting system categories, see Oregon’s Program Budgeting and
Accounting Manual.
20 pistricts with fewer than 69 students can join other districts in a consortium to access these grants.

34




567

English Learners in Oregon

References

Allen, A. (2016). Examining best practices in gifted education to identify and serve culturally and linguistically
diverse students. Presentation at the Oregon Association of Bilingual Educators, Happy Valley, Oregon, June
24, 2016.

Allensworth, E., & Evans, S. (2016). Tackling absenteeism in Chicago. Phi Delta Kappan, 98(2), 16-21.
https://doi.org/10.1177/0031721716671900

Artiles, A., & Ortiz. A. (Eds.). (2002). English language Learners with special education needs: Assessment,
identification, and instruction. Washington, DC: Center for Applied Linguistics.

Browder, C. T. (2014). English Learners with limited or interrupted formal education: Risk and resilience in
educational outcomes. University of Maryland: dissertation.

De Jong, E.J. (2004). After exit: Academic achievement patterns of former English language Learners.
Education Policy Analysis Archives, 12 (50). Downloaded from https://epaa.asu.edu/ojs/article/view /205/331

Ebert, K. D., & Reilly, M. (2022). Predictors of language proficiency in school-age Spa nish—English
bilingual children with and without developmental language disorder. Bilingualism: Language and
Cognition, 25(2), 296-306.

Flores, S. M., Batalova, J., & Fix, M. (2012). The Educational trajectories of English language learners in Texas.
Washington DC: Migration Palicy | nstitute.

Garcia, O. (2009). Emergent bilinguals and TESOL: What's in a name? TESOL Quarterly, 43(2), 322-326.
https://doi.org/10.1002/j.1545-7249.2009.tb00172.x

Ginsburg, A., Jordan, P., & Chang, H. (2014). Absences add up: How school attendance affects student success.
Attendance Works. Downloaded from https://www.attendanceworks.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/05/Absenses-Add-Up September-3rd-2014.pdf

Hamayan, E., Marler, B., Sanchez Lopez, C,, & Damico, J. (2007). Special education considerations for English
language Learners: Delivering a continuum of services. Philadelphia: Caslon.

Hopkins, M., Thompson, K. D., Linquanti, R., Hakuta, K., & August, D. (2013). Fully accounting for English
learner performance: A key issue in ESEA reauthorization. Educational Researcher, 42(2), 101-108.
https://doi.org/10.3102/0013189X12471426

Menken, K., & Kleyn, T. (2009). The difficult road for long-term English Learners. Educational Leadership,
66(7), 26-29.

ODE ESSA Plan (2017). Oregon’s Consolidated State Plan Under the Every Student Succeeds Act. Available at:
https.//www.oregon.gov/ode/rules-and-
policies/ESSA/Documents/APPROVED%200R_ConsolidatedStateplan8-30-17.pdf

35



568

English Learners in Oregon

Short, D. J., & Fitzsimmons, S. (2007). Double the work: Challenges and solutions to acquiring language and
academic literacy for adolescent English language learners: A report to Carnegie Corporation of New York.
Alliance for Excellent Education.

Thompson, K. D., Umansky, |. M., & Rew, W. J. (2022). Improving understanding of English learner education
through an expanded analytic framework. Educational Policy. https://doi.org/10.1177/08959048221087214

36



569

90T S-) |eol
£9¢€ 661 9T [e3oL
: 9z
m 9z 34
: 4 34
m ST vz
; vZ vZ
m ST 4
€7 vz
14 [44 [cep]  pHomMuym
! gEE v8 z6 €6 69 je301
L
: : Iz Iz vZ 0
: : 0z €2 £2 €2
: : 12z e €2 €z
: : (44 e €7 €7 [ztv] | 2lepye0
AW 6te i oz i see | see [sve LL 66 ls6 v le30L
: ; 0z 9z Sz 81
: : : : 61 vz 2 8T
: : : 61 vz £Z 61
w : 61 52 €2 61 [o9v] 3lA|
0z/6Tq°4 : TZ/0T9°d | zz/rzged i €Z/ezqed wuowisel(|jejo) S v £ z 1 u1dy Aydeder [ooYds
¥20zZ Aenugay

Moday Juaw|jo.3 11ISIA [00YIS sejjeq




570

9T-GT0Z sndwe) papuaixj Jeaj ise
*1e9A j00Yds OT/60 2A1122Y° uoien3yuodal Alejuawsa)3
[ 9T-ST0Z 129A 1514 *SUIPNIS 08 YIIM [00UDS J21JBLD B SEM UOSLLIOA 9007 Ul
6 11 91 L4 Eve jejoL 87T papuaixe |00Yyds Y3y
Yiit yiot ylie yis T€Z vze |1e10]]
v (43 €T (44 LT £C ST 81 80T 6 1513 Jo InQj
yiL Y19 yas v pig pug IsT D) | €zl 0T PulsIg y|
Jooyas Ajunwwo) sejieq [1eax 3seq] uamund]  HILMVHD SOAT
L¥0E $2a/SIA1 buipnpauy
0687 i €v9Z : 1S9z i 009 i 1957 08SZ |ejo] pueus
00 O BRI 0. _ vAQ
A L 2 L T L ' ! v 9 s ¢
ZT opeio|TT apeio| 0T open| 6 opess| gopess| sapeis| gepess| olavd
R A L T T T €V €7 9
w : Z¢T 2pel |11 3peld | QT apess [so1] dYJWN
T[98 iiss i el i 7ve i 1.8 |joss or_ [s1e 977 017 s0Z
: : : aiemAassApo | uBiHIsod | ZT apes | [T apeso | QT apels | 6 apeso [ozot] SHA
60L i 6€9 i 886 i &85 i 695 |lcLs 11z 08T 98T
: : : : gopesn | Lopeio | gepesn | [szz] | ajoaner
0z/61 994 : Tz/0z 924 : zz/1z9°4 ! €2/ZZ 994 :uIuOW ise) Awdedey _oa:um__
v20z Atenigay

Joday Juawij|o.3 1d13sIg jooYyds sejjeq



LUCKIAMUTE VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOLS

2023-24
February
STUDENT TOTALS
Current #'s Last Year
In District 130 123
Out of District 94 108
TOTAL STUDENT #'s 224 231

BREAKDOWN BY GRADE LEVELS

Current #'s Last yr.
Kindergarten 23 24
1st Grade 23 23
2nd Grade 22 25
3rd Grade 23 25
4th Grade 29 25
5th Grade-Leah 15 23
5th Grade-Bibbs 21 21
6th Grade 24 26
7th Grade 25 23
8th Grade 23 16

NUMBERS CURRENT AS OF 01/29/2024

571



572

uelpu| uesuawy @ UBISBINED/AIUM . UBISY @

Ay Ag yuswijjoius jooyas ybiH

se||eg

; 18213){/Weles
AV %l L}
_ JLuyo-diod
%2

18Lp0O-uouUEY
Aunod/AD Aq jusuyoluz j0oyog ybiH

Jspues| ayped @ uejpujueouswy @ ougepoluedsiH @
ueiseaneD ey i  ueduwwpoRlg @ uelsy @

Ayougi3 Aq uswijous g-)

19z)0Y|/Wwo|es
%911
Iiywep

%61
1ay|Q-uoue

Aunod/AuD Aq uswijouz 8-y

0 0 SvZ uz | otz | ‘eoLpuesy
T ) e e “La7) 2301 SHIQ
0 0 ot T 3
0 0 0 11 €1 o1
0 0 0 91 81 6
0 0 e 0 i . 807 62T . i[el0L 8)
0 0 0 0 £7 w 8
0 0 0 0 74 82 L
0 0 0 0 23 13 1€ 1€ €€ i€ 9
0 0 0 0 vz vz vz €2 st vE g
0 0 0 0 f23 €2 vz vz 52 0€ v
0 0 0 0 Lz 1z 8z 6z 1€ 62 £
0 0 0 0 w €z €T £z st € z
0 0 4] 0 91 T
0 0 0 0 8T A
[$ Aen ady “GRE S ver

.VNnﬂNcN ucwE__O._:m _OOr_Ow ?—.::EEOU mm:wﬂ




573

96°2£5°669  967£5'669  96°7€5'S69  96°T£5'S69  96-TES'SHY 96°2£5'569 £relgiotl 6z evbizol 00°6¥6‘0zL gL 'P09'S6L ob-Su‘ng L1'T69°6L9 JONVIVE ANNd
19°LLb'E95" - - - - - T5'b6T'E6T z5'zgriofr | L9'0g9'bot grsilight o0l'bll'99t 5g'791'tb Li1l95'Lg SIUNLIANIAXT TVLOL
95°€18'09 L6162 bg'v59'g Sl Ebb'Te uoponisuc) | ooob
68°979'€L 99°6/£'07 69'7E5TL 98'505'bL 9l Li'gL WSho'L 0g'6bo'L Sa0]Ala5 pOO4 | 000F
0z L156Y fo1gb'lg 0611919 gTLbG'EL 95289501 89°664'gS 68'6/L'99 9g8°029"Z5 wpoddns | oooz
96°615°LE6 98°gLz'9lL 60°1gb L1 £5€£9'9/1L 9g°0z6'bzz S1'9g6'LlL QuUEEE'b 196’6 uoponasul | oool

NOILONNd A8 STHNLIANIAXT
19°LLb €95 - - - - - 75'bbT'E67 z5zgt'ofr | L9'0g9'b9t grsiligbt ol'blL'99T $g'791'zh [T SIYNLIANIAXT TVLIOL
19"S1Z°9E gg'ogo'b 00'052 £9'€75 LO'EBE g9l go'bEE'T 60°£55'g2 s994 g sang 009
60-Log‘og L6'b1T'62 bg'tS9'g 00°€96'z +S€0b'g SLEbS'hT 66'9g6'€ 00’05z syuawaaosduwjuawdinby 005
S61L6°LL £g'109'61 60"16%'01 6g-L£621 go'lg9‘€L ofLETLL igzli'g 6g°6bg°L sa||ddns oot
0l-ggg‘str Shieliz zo'bz9'gL L6'10T'1b 59°5g°61 6l7lt'g [TV R z0'gS9'otL SIS 00t
99-SEVLER 09°625'16 52'258'S9 zL'0£6'69 L6'6£6'oL ££br9'9l b9rizs'eL 57'9€0'6 sjyauag 00T
09°851°S6L (IR zgeobozl | tni'itL Lg'Si6'002 6z°516'Sh1L 95°50E‘Th 26°576'bL saje|es ool
133780 A8 STHUNLIONIAX3
15-010°652°T - . - - - SE-bS69z ot Til'bSe 96bLi'gbt ob-650'bLz go'v9T'iST g0-9gS‘fzz 6g-tglzSh ANNIAIY TVLOL
Sk Sibbez SbrSly'bbz ajue|eg pun4 Sujuuidag 00b5Y
Tl-SzS'Ex Tl STt ple uj sjueln oolba
#S'¥61°91 veLl6E 06'896'Z ob¥57'6 23835 NUL| SjUeLD [e13pad paydlysay | ooShy
1L:gg1'1 08°L90'T el 99'6£5'T gb0ll'g (G9-916) | sjUeln 23B3S paydlysay | b6Iey
ot 66 08'9% o09'zh younfisepiealg pacnpay ozity
0£°2L9% S0'€£6 STbbl 1sepyeaag 21q18)3 papuedx3 9344 4O | zoify
9£719561L" sk iz webb'hiz | stz sz eshb'hiz wshbhiz bbobg'gel spunj |00Yds 23e)S | "LoLEy
90°0z4'L 00°09 90°489 0077521 00°52ZL 00°968"t 00°000'T IWODU] SNOAUR|IRISIW 0661y
0551842 oSzl 0008 00°S 00°SE 00°€gz $32UN0S 3}BAL4 suojjeuoq ozéiy
20569 00°510° 00°SZ0°L S9TLé 00°%06L 607509t oo'gel S3|es 3d)Adag poo4 0091y
Lzbeg ltbeg suopoung epads | ofoiy
9L'6 b £b'1 €1 b GEL gc°l gE'L sjuaLLysaAuf uo sdujuiey | oLSiy
9E'Lgo'v Ly 0g'69v6E 9t'z92'gT 9g'gTLDE g9°EgL'vb 9lzbbiLE JuBWISINGLURY I2L13510 00TLY
% ANN3IATY
18301 alA aNNC AYW T4dv HOYYW ‘934 AYVNNYI 23d ‘AON ‘100 ‘1d3S 1snony Alnc

AYVINWNS LHO43Y ayvog
ve02-€2oe
TOOHJS "3LEVHO AITIVA ILNAVIXONT




Luckiamute Valley Charter Schools

Profit & Loss
January 2024

02/05/24
Accrual Basis

574

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
R1200 - District Pass-Thru
R1510 - Eammings on Investments
R1600 - Food Service Sales

R3101 - State School Funds

R3102 - OR Free Expanded Eligible Break
R3120 - Reduced Breakfast/Lunch

R3299 - Other Restricted State Gr
R4500 - Restricted Rev. from Fed

Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
1000 - 1000-INSTRUCTION
1100 - Regular Programs
1111 - Elementary Grades K-5
111-111 - Licensed Salaries
111-112 - Classified Salaries
111-121 - Substitute Salaries
111-131 - Extra Duty Salaries
111-211 - PERS-Employer
111-212 - PERS-EPPT
111-220 - Social Security
111-231 - Worker's Comp
111-240 - Health Insurance
111-241- OR-PFL
111-355 - Printing
111-399 - Purchased Services
111-410 - Supplies
111-480 - Computer Hardware

Total 1111 - Elementary Grades K-5

1121 - Middle Programs 6-8
121-111 - Licensed Salaries
121-211 - PERS-Employer
121-212 - PERS-EPPT
121-220 - Social Security
121-231- Workers Comp
121-240 - Health Insurance
121-241 - OR-PFL
121-355 - Printing
121-410 - Consumables
121-460 - Non-consumable

Total 1121 - Middle Programs 6-8

Total 1100 - Regular Programs

Jan 24

39,469.80

1.44
1,015.00

214,445.22
933.05
56.80
2,061.80

3,971.24

261,954.35

261,954.35

39,443.75
12,303.96
3,062.20
708.33
12,187.69
2,855.58
1,963.98
26.61
21,373.00
209.65
280.09
175.00
27293

564.29

95,426.85

24,151.41
6,603.18
1,548.08
1,954.75
13.74
4,047.42
101.00
137.77
817.21

24.79
39,399.35

134,826.20

Page 1



575

Luckiamute Valley Charter Schools

02/05/24 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January 2024
Jan 24
1250 - Special Programs
125-111 - Certified Salaries 4,844.58
125-112 - Classified Salaries 9,991.37
125-121 - Substitute Salaries 212,75
125-211 - PERS Employer 3,904.36
125-212 - PERS-EPPT 935.92
125-220 - Social Security 1,193.30
125-231+ Workers Comp 12.12
125-240 - Health Insurance 10,150.00
125-241- OR-PFL 66.39
Total 1250 - Special Programs 31,310.79
1270 - Title |
127-111 - Licensed Salaries 5,058.92
127-211 - PERS 1,563.21
127-212 - PERS-EPPT 336.54
127-220 * Social Security 2,336.66
127-231 - Worker's Comp 14.10
127-240 - Health Insurance 750.00
127-241 - OR-Paid Family Leave 22.44
Total 1270 - Title | 10,081.87
Total 1000 - 1000-INSTRUCTION 176,218.86
2000 - SUPPORT SERVICES
2100 - Support Services - Students
2113 + Social Work Services
211-111 - Licensed Salaries 5,058.92
211-211 - PERS-Employer 1,266.25
211-212 - PERS-EPPT 303.54
211-220 + Social Security 387.00
211-231 - Workers Comp 1.94
211-240 + Health Insurance 1,033.49
211-241 - OR-PFL 19.24
Total 2113 - Social Work Services 8,070.38
Total 2100 - Support Services - Students 8,070.38
2200 - Instructional Staff
220-313 - Support Services 4,175.00
220-410 - Supplies 27.78
Total 2200 - Instructional Staff 4,202.78
2240 - Instructional Staff Development
224-341- Travel 56.72
224-410 - Supplies 380.00
Total 2240 - Instructional Staff Development 436.72

2310 - School Board

Page 2



576

Luckiamute Valley Charter Schools

02/05/24 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January 2024
Jan 24
231-410 - Consumables 645.00
231-640 - Dues and Fees 2,400.00
Total 2310 + School Board 3,045.00
2410 - School Administration
241-112 - Confidential Salaries 4,086.00
241-113 + Administrator salaries 6,500.00
241-211 - PERS-Employer 3,282.69
241-212 - PERS-EPPT 352.65
241-220 - Social Security 1,035.96
241-231+ Workers Comp 7.22
241-240 - Health Insurance 1,100.00
241-241- OR-PFL 54.16
241-340 - Travel 517.00
241-351- Telephone 202.48
241-353 - Postage 198.00
241-470 - Software 250.00
241-640 - Dues and Fees 1,600.09
Total 2410 - School Administration 19,186.25
2500 - Support services-business
2520 - Fiscal services
252-114 - Managerial Classified 4,993.67
252-211 - PERS - Company 1,387.58
252-212 - PERS EPPT 332.62
252-220 - Social Securtiy 424.09
252-231 - Workers Comp 2.82
252-240 - Health-Employer 550.00
252-241+ OR-PFL 22.17
252-380 - Payroll and Accounting Services 400.00
252-381 - Audit Services 3,750.00
252-410 - Supplies 62.19
252-470 - Software 1,324.00
252-640 - Dues and Fees 80.79
Total 2520 - Fiscal services 13,329.93
2540 - Plant services
254-112 - Classified Salaries 2,414.42
254-211 - PERS-Company 384.52
254-212 - PERS-EPPT 92.18
254-220 - Social Securtiy 184.72
254-231- Worker's Comp 2.42
254-241 - OR-PFL 9.66
254-322 - Repairs and Maintenance 380.00
254-324 - Rental 637.00
254-325 « Electricity 2,377.06
254-326 - Fuel 123.90
254-328 - Garbage 458.46
254-329 - Other property services 1,649.00
254-410 - Supplies 1,512.77

Page 3



02/05/24
Accrual Basis

Luckiamute Valley Charter Schools
Profit & Loss

January 2024

254-460 - Non-consumables
Total 2540 - Plant services

2550 - Transporation
255-331 - Transportation

Total 2550 - Transporation
Total 2500 - Support services-business

2660 - Technology Services
266-112 - Classified Salaries
266-211+ PERS Employer
266-212 - PERS-Pick-Up
266-220 - Social Security
266-231- Workers Comp

Total 2660 - Technology Services
Total 2000 - SUPPORT SERVICES

3000 - ENTERPRISE & COMMUNITY
3120 - Food Services

312-112 - Classified Salary
312-211- PERS-Employer
312-212 - PERS-EPPT
312-220 - Social Security/Medicare
312-231 - Workers Comp
312-240 - Health Insurance
312-241- OR-PFL
312-410 - Supplies
312-450 - Food

Total 3120 - Food Services
Total 3000 - ENTERPRISE & COMMUNITY
4000 - FACILITIES ACQUISITION & CONSTR
4150 - Building Acq, const, impr. Ser
415-530 - Improvements-Other
Total 4150 - Building Acq, const, impr. Ser
Total 4000 - FACILITIES ACQUISITION & CONS...
6560 - Payroll Expenses
Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Net Income

Jan 24

1,800.00

12,026.11

5,797.04

5,797-04

31,153.08

1,000.00
250.30
60.00
76.50
0.02

1,386.82

67,481.03

3,722.44
915.90
219.55
284.77

3.72
3,254.85
57.35
23.16

11,897.92

20,379.66

20,379.66

29,214.97

29,214.97

29,214.97

293,294.52
-31,340.17

-31,340.17

Page 4

577



Dallas Community School
Financial Report - Q2, October 2023 to December 2023

578

' 3ank Balances as of:

JUL 2023 AUG 2023 SEP 2023 OCT 2023 NOV 2023 DEC 2023
Jmpqua Bank Balance $1,469,821.20 $1,453,775.98 $1,491,449.62  $1,505,936.52 $757,930.40 $747,113.20
: “ive Oak Bank CD $195,122.43  $195,869.15 $196,594.51 $197,346.87 $198,077.70 $198,835.73
levenue/Resources
OCT 2023 NOV 2023 DEC 2023 | Actual YTD Budget YTD Annual Budget BVA%
state School Funding $201,310.38  $201,310.38  $201,310.38  $1,411,416.65 $679,200.85 $2,090,617.50 67.51%
"‘nterest Income $752.36 $730.83 $758.03 - . %
 Misc. Income $17,405.07  $2,244.00 $0.00 . : %
i Total Revenue $219,467.81 $204,285.21 $202,068.41
- Seneral Fund - Expenditures by Object Code
; OCT 2023 NOV 2023 DEC 2023 Actual YTD  BudgetYTD Annual Budget BVA%
100 Salaries $87,856.99 $86,711.16  $100,807.16 $493,826.41 $533,864.33  $1,027,690.74 48.05%
: 200 Associated Payroll $42,774.30 $36,567.60 $42,006.14 $244,121.31 $270,372.16 §514,493.47 47.45%
300 Services $28,818.08 $20,334.64 $23,277.18 $168,786.97 $216,263.03 $385,050.00 43.84%
400 Supplies and Materials $7,012.37 $5,898.21 $11,428.24 $47,838.39 $92,861.61 $140,700.00 34.00%
411 K-8 Allotments $23,806.59 $6,122.51 $5,262.82 $47,472.33 $152,527.67 $200,000.00 23.74%
500 Equipment/Facility $0.00  $787,443.00 $438.96 $800,855.90 -$736,855.90 $64,000.00 1251.34%
600 Dues & Fees $3,538.49 $0.00 $332.49 $37,171.26 $9,928.74 $47,100.00 78.92%
' Total Expenditures $193,806.82 $943,077.12  $183,552.99 $1,840,072.57 $538,961.64 $2,379,034.21
3IA - Expenditures by Object Code - WORK IN PROGRESS
i OCT 2023 NOV 2023 DEC 2023 Actual YTD Budget YTD Annual Budget BVA%
100 Salaries $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,217.40 $23,217.40 0.00%
200 Associated Payroll $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,568.83 $33,568.83 0.00%
300 Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 0.00%
400 Supplies and Materials $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
411 K-8 Allotments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
500 Equipment/Facility $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
: 600 Dues & Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $64,286.23 $64,286.23
: Notes from the Business Office
- Revenue Highlights:
- Nothing to report.
Expenditures Highlights:
- Wells Fargo Building was purchased in November.
Restricted Grant Highlights:
- This area is a work in process. Once we finalize our supplemental budget financials will include grant information.




LUCKIAMUTE VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOLS
BOARD MINUTES
January 17, 2024
BRIDGEPORT CAMPUS

CALL TO ORDER At 6:38 by Vicki Avery.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: (via Zoom) Vicki Avery, Matt Beasley, Kendall Cates,
Greg Oldham, Fred Weisensee

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: (via Zoom) Christy Wilkins, Daniel Shimek, Tammy
Price

BOARD SECRETARY: (via Zoom) Donna Santa Maria

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA- Greg motioned for approval. Matt seconded. All
approved.

2. CONSENT AGENDA
2.1 - December Board meeting minutes correction. Early Literacy Application
was presented and approved and allowed for public comment. Matt made a
motion for approval and Fred seconded. All in favor.

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS
3.1 Next Board Meeting- February 21, 2024. There will be a presentation in the
second-grade classroom.

4. REPORTS-
4.1 Directors Report- Christy Wilkins

e School Board Appreciation- a big Thank You to our Board. (due to icy
weather, cards and sentiments were not able to be presented).

e ODE approved curriculum for K-5 ELA was reviewed by teachers.
Funds for this are already included in this year’s budget. Because the
Science of Reading Model is being adopted by LVCS, the curriculum
material must align with that instruction. Savvas curriculum has been
chosen and will pilot in September.

e Technology update- Paul Littrell submitted a proposal for gradual
replacement of chromebooks. More discussion and decision-making
is needed so Paul will come to a board meeting in the near future.

e Salary and Benefit Increase- all staff to get an increase in wages:
hourly 3%, licensed 2%. Increase insurance cap, return bonus,
personal leave days.

579



580

e Carnival- Josh Kibby is heading up the Carnival this year. It has been
since 2019 that LVCS has had a carnival. Any equipment that was
stored got ruined and we are starting fresh. All the staff are helping,
and donations are being accepted for the silent auction.

e The field trip to WOU for the Rainbow Dance is being rescheduled.

e The ice storm made for a lot of work at both campuses- Josh and
Daniel really put in a lot of hours to make it clear and safe.

e Tammy Pryce’s position of Business Manager has been posted and
will remain open until February 14.

4.2 Facility Reports- Tammy Pryce and Daniel Shimek

e Bridgeport- Lights in the parking lot and security cameras are in the
process of completion. Pest control is needed in a few modules. The
intercom system will need to be replaced or improved.

e Pedee- Two-way intercom system needs to be installed along with
security cameras and a bell system. There is water in the basement
from rain and hopefully by fixing the slope and gravel in the front and
side of the building that will take care of it. The replacement of
plumbing that is required because of new regulations is coming
together and awaiting pricing. Hopefully a priority list with finished
pricing will be available by the next board meeting.

4.3 Financial Reports- Tammy Pryce

e Audit went well- no bad findings.

e In review, Vicki noted a sweep on the account. In short, the account
was not automatically closed because the bank needed a letter so
they could transfer the monies to a money market. CD will have a 3%
rate.

4.4 Student Enrollment- Student enrollment remains full at both campuses.
Third grade had two openings but are being filled.
5. BOARD ACTION ITEMS

5.1 Early Literacy Application- correction to the board minutes as stated in 2.1.

5.2 Audit Plan of Action for Secretary of State- the letter will be signed and
sent off. Greg motioned to approve, and Kendall seconded. All in favor.
6. ADJOURN:

6.1 Meeting was adjourned at 7:25 by Vicki Avery.



581

Al%; ’ Community Innovation Partners

i

7 4;\\ Dallas Community School Agenda [APPROVED]

BALLAS AT Friday, February 2, 2024 5:30 P.M.

Mission Statement: In Person Join Zoom Meeting

Dallas Community 689 Main St.

School is an inclusive Dallas, OR 97338 https://us02web.zoom.us/i/84818626667?pwd=0XVMc3BCa
gsggg ;i':gtef school 2hVQU1BbWZMS21wbUFzdz09

collaborative,
standards- based
educationin a
flexble, | 1. 5:30 PM: Board Meeting Call to Order
non-traditional

environment. . .
2. Executive Session:

Vision: . The board will meet in executive session under the following Oregon
g;'ﬁzﬁgm:‘:g&er Revised Statute (ORS): ORS 192.660(2)(a) to consider the employment of
ronsradiional a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent.
learners with the Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend executive sessions, except for
knowledge, skills, those sessions held in regard to expulsions. All other audience members are excluded
and abilities to from executive sessions and are asked to exit the meeting area. Representatives of the

succeed in and
contribute value to
their community.

news media are specifically directed not to report on any of the deliberations during
executive sessions, except to state the general subject of the session as listed on the
agenda. No recording of executive sessions is allowed without express permission from
the board.

3. Return to open session

4. Review Agreements:
a. DCS Board Member Code of Conduct

5. Public Comment:

6. Treasurer's Report - Brian McCoy/Erin Miller
a. November/December Financials
b. Oregon State Credit Union

7. Consent Agenda:

February 2, 2024 Agenda

January 18, 2024 Minutes

January 27, 2024 Minutes
November/December 2023 Financials

co o

@

Interim Director Report - Andy Johnson
a. Enroliment Report
b. Accreditation Update
c. Upcoming Events - Master Calendar

Individuals requiring accommodation should contact Dallas Community School at

info@dallascommunityschool.org or 503-420-4360



582
d. Dallas Community School Roles and Responsibilities

9. Board Discussion and Action
a. Juli Ann Lindemann's Resignation
b. Transition Plan (Wendy)
c. Supplemental Budget: Heather/Christy
d. HMK Facilities Project Estimates

10. Adjourn

11. Next Meeting: March 7, 2024 @ 5:30 P.M.

Individuals requiring accommodation should contact Dallas Community School at

info@dallascommunityschool.org or 503-420-4360



583

% 7. DALLAS COMMUNITY

A
T~

VN SCHoOL

Board Member Code of Conduct

A Dallas Community School board member:

Understands that the board sets the standards for the charter school through board
policy.

Understands that board members do not manage the day-to-day operations of the
school. This includes but is not limited to managing the budget, evaluating staff,
facilitating student discipline, handling parent concerns and implementing the vision,
curriculum, and school philosophy set by the board. In addition, the executive director
will liaison with the Dallas School District.

Understands that the board makes decisions as a team.

Individual board members may not commit the board to any action.

Respects the right of other board members to have opinions and ideas that differ.
Recognizes that decisions are made by a majority vote and should be supported by all
board members.

Makes decisions only after the facts are presented and discussed.

Understands the chain of command and refers problems or complaints to the executive
director.

Recognizes that the board must comply with the Public Meetings Law and has
authority to make decisions only at official board meetings.

Insists that all board and district business is ethical and honest. Is open, fair and honest
— has no hidden agenda.

Understands that the board member will receive confidential information that cannot
be shared.

Recognizes that the executive director is the board's adviser and should be present at
all meetings, except when the board is considering the superintendent’s evaluation,
contract or salary. :

Takes action only after hearing the executive director’s recommendations.

Refuses to use board membership for personal or family gain or prestige. Announces
conflicts of interest before board action is taken.

Understands their role as a board member and as a parent and ensures these do not
conflict in interactions with school staff.

Refuses to bring personal or family problems into board considerations.

Gives the staff the respect and consideration due skilled professional employees.
Presents personal criticism of school system operations to the executive director, not
to staff or at a board meeting.

Respects the right of the public to attend and observe board meetings.

Respects the right of the public to be informed about board decisions and school
operations as allowed by law.



584

244 DALLAS COMMUNITY
MMV SCHoOL

o Stay abreast of education policy and statewide issues in education in general and for
Charter Schools

Adopted October 2023



Board Meeting Minutes for Thursday, January 18, 2024 @ 5:30 p.m. [APPROVED]

PLEASE NOTE: MEETING TOOK PLACE VIDEOCONFERENCE ONLY
School was closed because of the ice storm and facility damage.
Board meeting was moved to zoom.

Date: January 18, 2024
Location: Zoom Only

In Attendance

President: Wendy Sparks

Vice President: Erin Miller

Secretary: Heather Irwin, Excused for facility work
Treasurer: Brian McCoy

Board Members: Jessica Mackey

Staff: Juli Ann Lindemann, Excused for facility work
Visitors: None

Mission Statement:

Dallas Community School is an inclusive public charter school supporting collaborative,
standards- based education in a flexible, non-traditional environment.

Vision:
Dallas Community School will empower non-traditional learners with the knowledge, skills,
and abilities to succeed in and contribute value to their community.

1. Call to order: 5:46 PM

2. Consent Agenda:
a. January 18, 2024 Agenda
b. November 16, 2023 Minutes
c. December 7, 2023 Minutes
d. November/December 2023 Financials

Motion was made by Erin and seconded by Wendy to approve the agenda with
modification and the consent agenda. Motion passed unanimously.

3. Board Discussion Action:
a. Future of CD Account:
i.  Erin and Brian reported that the CD at Live Oak Bank matured in early
February. Erin and Brian are waiting for information from Juli Ann on how
much the board does need to have in liquid assets before they can

585



586

recommend putting additional dollars in a CD. Their recommendation is
to renew the existing CD + interest earned into a new CD for one year.

Brian made a motion to renew the existing CD + interest in to a new CD
with Llve Oak Bank. The new CD will be for one year to allow for the
highest interest rate (5.4%). The motion was seconded by Jessica. Motion
passed unanimously.

b. Executive Director Evaluation:
i.  Wendy described the process for executive director evaluation as follows:

January: Board will fill out their rubric with notes on score.
February: Board develops and implements a survey of staff and parents;
Juli Ann completes self evaluation and provides artifacts.
March: Board meets in executive or open session with Juli Ann to share
feedback and performance evaluation.
April: Board votes on performance evaluation in open session. This is in
the form of a written letter.

c. Signatory Resolution for Juli Ann Lindemann and Brian McCoy
i.  Amotion was made by Wendy and seconded by Erin to add Jul Ann
Lindemann and Brian McCoy as signers on the bank accounts at Umpqua
Bank and Live Oak Bank

d. Mission and Vision:

i.  Wendy shared the current DCS mission and vision and asked the board to
provide feedback by answering this question: Does this mission and vision
that we adopted 10 years ago meet the current and future mission of
Dallas Community School.

ii.  Wendy shared a new DRAFT mission and vision statement and asked the
board to provide feedback to Juli Ann.

iii.  Slides were shared with board members so they could provide feedback
on the jamboard.

4. Adjourn: 6:14 PM

Next meeting, February 2, 2024 @ 5:30 PM - MakerSpace, 689 Main St., Dallas, OR 97338



Date:

Board Meeting, Special Session
Minutes for Saturday, January 27, 2024 @ 6:00 p.m. [APPROVED]

PLEASE NOTE: MEETING TOOK PLACE VIDEOCONFERENCE AND IN PERSON

January 27, 2024

Location: Zoom

In Attendance

President: Wendy Sparks

Vice President: Erin Miller

Secretary: Wendy Sparks (Acting)
Treasurer: Brian McCoy

Board Members: Jessica Mackey

Staff:

Visitors:

= O

. Call to order: 6:05 PM

Agenda Review:
a. Motion to adopt 1/27/2024 agenda- Wendy
b. Second- Erin
c. Motion carries unanimously

Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(b)board moved into executive session at 6:15 PM Board
Discussion, Executive Session:

Board moved into general session at 8:00 PM

Board Action:

. Authorization to waive clause 4 (60 days notice requirement) in employment agreement

for Juli Ann Lindemann

a. Jessica Mackey motions

b. Brian McCoy seconds.

c. Motion carries, unanimous.
Amend Christy Perry’s contract and appoint her as acting administrator from 1/27/2024
through April 30 with the option to renew.

a. Jessica Mackey motions

b. Brian McCoy seconds.

c. Motion carries, unanimous.

. Appoint Andy Johnson interim executive director, effective 1/27/2024 through February 2

with option to extend.
a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
c. Motion carries, unanimous.
Move February Board meeting to Friday, 2/2 at 5:30 PM.,
a. Motion: Brian
b. Second: Wendy

587



588

c. Motion carries (Unanimous)
5. Authorize Charter School Registered Teacher with expedited service for Nicholas Nelson
a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
c. Motion carries, unanimous.
6. Authorize Charter School Registered Administrator with expedited service for Andrew
Johnson
a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
c. Motion carries, unanimous.

7. Authorize Charter School Registered Administrator for Dawn Adams
a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
c. Motion carries, unanimous.

8. Authorize Charter School Registered Administrator for Toni Hannan
a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
c. Motion carries, unanimous.

9. Authorize Charter School Registered Administrator for Heather Irwin

a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
c. Motion carries, unanimous.
10. Authorize Erin Miller, Brian McCoy, Andy Johnson as signers on the Umpqua Bank
account,
a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
c. Motion carries, unanimous.
11. Authorize removal of Juli Ann Lindemann from Umpqua Bank account.
a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
c. Motion carries, unanimous.
12. Authorize adding Andrew Johnson to Live Oak Bank account
a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
c. Motion carries, unanimous.
13. Authorize removal of Juli Ann Lindemann from Live Oak bank account.
a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
¢. Motion carries, unanimous.
14. Motion to place Juli Ann Lindemann on paid leave from 1/27 through 2/2/2024.
a. Jessica Mackey motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds.
c. Motion carries, unanimous.
15. Approve the 1/27/2024 minutes



589

a. Wendy Sparks motions
b. Brian McCoy seconds
c. Motion carries, unanimous

6. Adjourn: 8:20 PM



590

8TI6T:CT #20Z/T/2

 veochienigoed

Eoo.n .t_ounou s u_n_nwa. Sunoj
| wdg Aeq aseajoy AjJe3 isHaa | wdp-2 ‘BIA yeis 18|
62 r sz
>
O
S
 uognpny wales 2k ) oobq..
A pajuasald iSIMO €N e} o Eoﬁstcou eus ﬁE&_ w3 “puy IST & ¢
- SHOYSHOM | "id7 Aeq aseajoy Aled isHOQ| (8unds) m.:.mm..w P m.a.unﬁx 0 wipzhngesea| S
vz £ 11 1z oz 61-40Q 5,3uapisaid 14
1140 3414 STETT TT-N
eI wids 8
.ms._%_ € WAl “puy IST. ; s i 73 o 7 lueg @ SNIO
- 7 m:ﬂ_uumnwm ﬂw.__._OU Uuwmﬂo € vy oz 2 —M _._n_mu M,.ELU._. ‘.m-.._= 1T
. ; : “_33 et .m 3 ; u 393135 951107 3}SUQ
S;Ea oot 154 £ _ﬂmbn B e u,,._u,xoont&w
S sdoysyom | ey u EE : Rl eq ‘
e R O _(Aeq S2UUR(EA) ¥33M LINIdS ‘81| AJIMLIMIGS BN 5 y3am LiwdS 28N
L1 [ £1 31 I
: LoRLLT WepQioT
- doystiom pieog | ;
3 sa105 3
 UOISIA PUE 20D 1HVINS 8- .am,mi._ S e c
. Bupjep azejooy) g-g |- Wdz Aeg Sseajay Ae3 SH2a duiuiel) Junsay 3iels gy
: i pawWwayl auualep | Qu__p:a maom_ . y Euh.@ WEIN cmsz._Sc_
- S|iyS ._So_z Ui 24 ey 01 Sojere) ssinoy| G:WMM Macwhnu_w._m% u_..m_h-”“ ¥ f...nc_:_E_uwu.hi Flsy EEun:oo_—um JoopInQ
: usam_ € WIBL TYNIH 18X o L widy-z B geis gy | 0 SPRID Wig isIuaAg "as|N
ot 6 8 [ 9 S [}
- slopalig jo preog
40312311Qg IA1IIN29X3
e 2 Z_—_:EEou
. wdpg:g Supaap paeog
7-ZNOM e Aeq Ayanoy :g4f - - Aea uopepauddy pieog
_ .\ Sy UO3N :waA3 SN | ., Bujuueld 201sas-u) g | WdZ Aeq asealay Aled [SHOQ 5
£ z T
Aepimjes Aepuy AepsinyL Aepsaupa Aepsan] Aepuopy




591

8T:6T:ZT ¥Z0Z/T/T

9 a6 o & & &
S o%.w/,o o%.w & R R
ARG A\ £ o £ £ ¥ 1§—-Ja1503
nuOAvb..vvo Jahv ﬂfo &Ol\.v .o.va n-nmlo 640 quo.o 0&9
09 E 00 & b\b ¥ 00 3 09 &
0f 62 z [44 9z 74 24
sanpayas Ip3s wuay Suudg i
8-)l speojdn epuoyy
7 heq wssy - jooups oN :sHIQ | | widg Aeq aseaian Alied isHoa
£z T 1 Lt
~ wdooiz g E_."_ TN
.ﬂ aev.a 73 Apuy) ano3 Buipjing | Beibssiisiesss =S
e ; =, wgel: ﬂn azcaunq_mn__uﬁog _ 2 E«w@mzmno
m.om ﬁ Eﬁu &2_ 4O UORUBAU] S _u,__aa m wia] “puy pig
BYL- RO iS5ID N[ 400] 89| T Wdpz B peis ig| SUOI9I9S 95iN0D 211su0 igN
9T ST 7 31 ot
e yeg Bupds Jaye jun

W 7202 Sunds- sjusuissassy
91815 520, 123Yspes.ds
DJUI P493UD SIUIPNIS ||y

; 1o {8-¢ s3pein)

ncz 3" TRV AN 1S T Sal[ILUE) 01 22110N 1531 21BIS

336 ueipiens :sHIQ

 feaug Suuds Jaye jaun auipeaq|
 S12pIO/ qU2Y 40T 03 SBPIND) | ©

i

7 ﬁ._t_@m::ﬁ..

. wdgz Aeq aseajy Apea isHaa |

siopalg jo pieog
J01241Q 2AINIAXI
o Ayunwwoy
EEuE.. m_._un oA
u..uo.:_ 5 L

ST Buuueld svjee-U

|7 Bujuueld 3djIaG-U) i8N

14 .n
Aepimes Aepuy Aepsinyy Aepsaupam Aepsany Aepuopy Aepung

PZ0Z Y2Ie




592

8T:6T:ZT ¥20Z/1/2

..%_s__ B @ 53pind o)

nw.ﬂ .9_2 Heis .u.u_ .

_oo;umhoovaw_o apeig ﬁw

62

8T

~* + Juo) pea JUaPMIS :SHIA

o | wdspiT ByA U) 934D VI 80

-+

0 wdp-z By s e

T vz £z
Sal|ille} 0} UOIBIILNLLILIO)
(8-E Sapein) 152l 21eIS
I114Q 2214 S5°6 1 TT-N ‘
" Wdg Aeq aseator Apea isHIA | Wdst:T BN U VI | wdp-Z Bun geis e |
o0z 8T LT 9T
A A : . utsm«&an.ﬂ_m:a
#1935 954n0) :8-9 | Lud7 Aeq oseajy Ape3 'sHIa | WdshiT BN Ul PRI VI igN| ¢ wdb-z B s i8N (8uiids) £ wia) 18N
£1 zt |3 ot 6 8 L

. VAL J2pup Joj Apeay

_ “._;_&__o&u:ﬂ_oﬁw.nﬁ

' Aequopepaiddy s,y

duiysal a1els
5103934/ JO pieog

._Buu.__o aApNIaxg

. vaLJapup Joj Apeay |

. Bujuueld 3djAsas-U) ;84

‘.E&%a uﬂu_uma_«m m:ua ;

s._mﬁ.uus_ U1 AU VI 8|

. wdp-z By pms ¢

14

€

Aepinjesg

Aepug

Aepsany

Aepsaupap

vzoe 1idy

Aepsan)

Aepuopy

Aepung




Roles and Responsibilities

Andy Johnson - Director

Oversees all operations
Runs Karaoke

Creation/Implementation/Evaluation of Operational Systems
Grant Acquisition and Community Relationships

Marketing

Accreditation,

Mentoring Teachers and Staff
Teacher Evaluations

Tier 2 Tier 3 behavior management systems

SPED
Facilities

Heather Irwin - Office Manager

Oversees all office operations,
HR,

Budget,

Systems

Assistance with Facilities
Audit

Board Secretary

Lori Jones - Administrative Assistant

Assistance with Facilities

Support office operations
Support with K-8 Schedules
Support with K-8 operations
Administrative Assistant
Supports Community Coordinator

Rhonda Hayes - Registrar

PowerSchool

Pulling necessary reports
All School Communication
Reception

School registrar

SPED scheduling

SIT notes / 504 notes

593



Dawn Adams - Assistant Director (K-8)

K-8 operations,

K-8 Recruitment,

K-8 Social Media,

Manage all school IA schedules, -
Early Literacy Work,

Accreditation Assistance,

Assist in overseeing K-8 curriculum
Teacher evaluation

K-8 Behavior management

Cami Mather / lan McMorrow - HS co-lead teaching

HS operations,

HS Recruitment,

HS Social Media (Julia N.)

HS Facilities assistance and input
Assist in overseeing curriculum
Behavior management (Tier 1/ Tier 2)
Data Collection for Accreditation

Toni Hannan - HS Counselor

[ ]

Audrey McMorrow - Community Outreach Coordinator

HS Counselor,

OES standards

SEL Work,

Graduation,

Post-Secondary

Family Support/County Connections

Community Outreach,
Marketing,
Recruitment,

Guest Teachers,
Building Use,

Field Trips,

Student Activities

594



595

,‘ﬁ' ‘g: Dallas Community School

K:E*“ ,‘&\ 689 Main Street
Dallas, OR 97338

DALLAS COMMUNITY Phone: 503/420-4360
SCHooL www.dallascommunityschool.org

February 2, 2024

TO: Dallas Community School Board of Directors
FROM: Heather Irwin, Business Manager
SUBJECT: Supplemental Budget

This supplemental budget is presented for your approval at the February 2, 2024 Board Meeting. Since the
budget was adopted in June of 2023, Dallas Community School has needed to adapt their budget to meet
the evolving needs of the school and to adjust to multiple personnel changes.

The presented budget in the following pages includes the following:

1. New format to show Fund 100, Fund 200 and Fund 401 as separate funds with descriptions.

2. Fund 200 Grants is not presented for 2.1.24. A full overview of our grants will be provided in March
and Fund 200 will be presented for your review at that time. No supplemental budget process is
needed for Fund 200.

3. (D at Live Oaks Bank is captured as resources (revenue) 5200 is the CD and the interest income is

captured in 1510.

All salary projections are represented as of any personnel changes on 1.31.24

Employee bonuses are included in the salary adjustments.

Expenses budgeted for consultants during this interim time.

New Fund 401 - This fund will capture the revenue and capital expenditures for the new building. To

date there has been an interfund transfer out of the general fund (fund 100), to Fund 401. The costs

associated with the property purchase and project management are coded as expenses in Fund 401.

If we choose to borrow to complete the renovations, the borrowed revenue will be forecasted in the

2024-25 Budget Document and the expenses for the renovations will be coded here as well.

8. Function 5220 shows the interfund transfer which transfers the dollars from Fund 100 to Fund 401

9. Asyou review fund 100 notice there is $926,033.03 in an unappropriated ending fund balance and
this is 22.41 % of the total budget. Best practice for the school district’s ending fund balance is 5-7%.

N A



Dallas Community School - Budget 2023-24
General Fund - 100

The General Fund accounts for all activities related to the general operation of Dallas Community School in providing instruction and support services to
students grades K-11. All revenues and expenditures are recorded here except those required to be accounted for in another fund. This report provides

detail level summary of all general fund actual and planned financial activiy for the 2023-24 school year,

spted Budget Supplemental
Adopted May 2023 Budget 2023-24
RESOURCES
1510 Interest $8,400.00 $8,400.00
3101 State School Fund $2,000,617.50 [ s2427.04837
5000 Other Source-CD $194,378.55 $194,378.55

5400 Beginning Fund Balance $1,501,648.00

$3,795,044.05

RESOURCES TOTAL:

$1,501,648.00
$4,131,574.92

spted Budget

Supplemental

Adopted May 2023 Budget 2023-24
EXPENSES
1000 INSTRUCTION
1111 K-8 Program
1111-111 Certified Salaries $363,222.20
1111-112 Classified Salaries $58,241.64
1111121 Sub. Teacher Salaries $10,000.00 $10,000.00
1111-240 Health/Dental Insurance $51,000.00 [ $51,660.00
1111-312 Extracurriculular Programs $12,000.00 $12,000.00
1111-390 Proffesional Development $3,000.00 $3,000.00
1111410 Consumable Supplies $5,000.00 $5,000.00
111411 Allotment $200,000.00 . $150,000.00
1111-460 Non-Consumables Supplies $2,000.00 i 5200030
1111470 Computer Software $4,000.00 $4,000.00
1111480 Computer Hardware $10,000.00 $10,000.00
[ Total: $718,463.84 $699,916.81]
1131 High School Program
1131111 Certified Salaries $228,010.01 § . $174,624.66
1131-112 Classified Salaries $38,838.65 é $28,778.00
1131-121 Sub. Teacher Salaries $5,000.00 ) $5,000.00
1131240 Health/Dental Insurance $5100000 |0 §34440.00
1131-310 Professional/Tech. Svs. $1,000.00 $1,000.00
1131-311 Instruction Services $7,500.00 $7,500.00
1131-312 Extracurriculular Programs $5,000.00 $5,000.00
1131-340 Travel $2,500.00 $2,500.00
1131-390 Profressional Development $7,000.00 $7,000.00
1131-410 Consumable Supplies $15,000.00 $15,000.00
1131-420 Textbooks $5,000.00 $5,000.00
1131-460 Non-Consumables Supplies $20,000,00 $20,000,00
1131-470 Computer Software $3,000.00 $3,000.00
1131-480 Computer Hardware $20,000.00 $20,000.00
1131-550 Technology Equipment $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Total: $418,848.66 $338,842.66]
1283 Expanded Options
1283-371 Tuition $20,000.00 $20,000.00
1283420 Textbooks $5,000.00 $5,000.00
Total: $25,000.00 $25,000.00]

1289 STEAM Machine

596



2000

2120

2220

2230

2231

2400

2410

2520

1289-410 Consumable Supplies $5,000.00 $5,000.00
1289-460 Non-Consumable Supplies $5,000.00 $5,000.00
$10,000.00 $10,000.00
INSTRUCTION TOTAL: $1,172,312.50 $1,073,759.47
SUPPORT
Guidance Services
2120-111 Certified Salaries $57,880.76 e $63,630.76-
2120-318 Professional Development $2,000.00 $2,000.00
2120-410 Consumable Supplies $500.00 $500.00
2120-480 Computer Hardware $2,500,00 $2,500.00
[ Total: $62,880.76 $68,630.76|
Library Media Center
2220-430 Library Books $3,000.00 $3,000.00
2220-640 Dues and Subscriptions $1,500.00 $1,500,00
( Total: $4,500.00 $4,500,00|
Assessment and Testing
2230-312 Testing Services $6,000.00 $6,000.00
[ Total: $6,000.00 $6,000.00]
DCS Board of Directors
2231-355 Printing $200.00 $200.00
2231-640 Dues/Fees $800.00 $800.00
[ Total: $1.000.00 $1,000.00]
School Administration
2400-113 Administrative Salaries $163,600.00
2400-112 Classified Salaries $29,297.66
2400-240 Health/Dental Insurance $8,500.00
2400-310 Professional/Tech. Svs. $0.00
2400-340 Travel $500.00 $500.00
2400-353 Postage $600.00 $600,00
2400-355 Printing $12,000.00 $12,000.00
2400-382 Legal Services $2,500.00 7 00
2400-390 Professional Development $1,500.00
2400410 Consumable Supplies $1,000.00
2400470 Computer Software $10,000.00 $10,000.00
2400-480 Computer Hardware $5,000.00 $5,000.00
2400-640 Dues/Fees $3,000.00 $3,000.00
2400-651 Liability Insurance $16,800.00 Et $22;00'D.00_§
[ Total: $254,297.66 $304,977.66)
Office of the Principal
2410-410 Consumable Supplies $3,000.00 $3,000.00
[ Total: $3,000.00 $3,000.00]
Fiscal Services
2520-114 Managerial Salaries $73,600.00 - $79,350.00
2520-211 PERS Employer Contribution $240,210.29 53,251.00.
2520-212 PERS EPPT Pick Up $60,761.46
2520-219 Payroll Taxes $81,521.72 :
2520-231 Workman's Comp $6,500.00 $6,500.00
2520-232 Unemployment $15,000.00 $15,000.00
2520-310 Professional/Tech. Svs. $30,000.00 $30,000.00
2520-380 Payroll Service Fees $11,250.00 $11,250.00

597



5220
7000

2540

2520-381
2520-390
2520410
2520-460
2520-470
2520-480
2520-640

Facility Services

2540-321
2540-322
2540-324
2540-325
2540-326
2540-327
2540-328
2540-351
2540-329
2540-390
2540-410
2540-460
2540-520
2540-530
2540-541
2540-542
2540-640
2540-653

INTERFUND TRANSFER
UNAPPROPRIATED END BALANCE

Audit Services $24,000.00 $24,000,00
Professional Development $0.00 $0.00
Consumable Supplies $1,200.00 $1,200.00
Non-Consumable Supplies $1,500.00 $1,500.00
Computer Software $5,500.00 $5,500.00
Computer Hardware $2,500.00 $2,500.00
Dues/Fees $1,000.00 $1,000.00
[ Total: $554,543.47 $575,674.00|
Cleaning $33,000.00 $33,000,00
Repairs/Maintenance $14,000.00 $14,000.00
Rental $136,000.00
Electricty $11,000.00 13,000.0
Fuel-Heating/Cooling $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Water $2,100.00 $2,100.00
Garbage $2,100.00 $2,100.00
Telephone/Fiber $16,800.00 $16,800.00
Other Property Services $15,000.00 $15,000.00
Professional/Tech. Svs. $5,000.00 $5,000.00
Consumables Supplies $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Non-Consumables Supplies $2,000.00 $2,000.00
Major Building Improvements $30,000.00 $30,000.00
Imprevement Other Than Building $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Equipment $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Replacement Equipment $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Dues/Fees $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Property Insurance Premium $20,000.00 $20,000.00

SUPPORT TOTAL:

401 Facility Expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES:

$323,000.00

$1,209,221.89

$0.00
$1,413,500.66

$3,795,044.05

$325,000.00
$1,288,782.42

$800,000.00
$969,033.03

TT$4,131,574.92)

598



Dallas Community School - Budget 2023-24

Capitol Projects Fund - 401

Fund 401 tracks our 2023-2025 high school expansion project. The Well's Fargo building was purchased in November 2023 and primilinary work for
building use permit and design has been completed. The complete budget will be proposed during the 2024-25 budget season.

spted Budget
Adopted May 2023

Supplemental
Budget 2023.24

RESOURCES

1990 Miscellaneous
2200 Restricted Revenue
3000 State Revenue
5220 Interfund Transfer
5100 Loan Proceeds

RESOURCES TOTAL:

$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $800,000.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $800,000.00

>pted Budget
Adopted May 2023

Supplemental
Budget 2023-24

EXPENSES

4000

FACILITIES ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION
4150 Building Acquisition, Construction, and Improvement Svs.

4150-329
4150-382
4150-380
4150-410
4150-460
4150-520
4150-530
4150-540
4150-541
4150-542
4150-550
4150-640

Other Property Services $0.00
Legai Services $0.00
Professional/Tech. Svs. $0.00
Consumables Supplies $0.00
Non-Consumables Supplies $0.00
Building Acquisition/Major Building Improven $0.00
Improvement Other Than Building $0.00 $0.00
Depreciable Equipment $0.00 $0.00
New Equipment $0.00 $0.00
Replacement Equipment $0.00 $0.00
Technology Equipment $0.00 $0.00
Dues/Fees $0.00 $0,00

FACILITY TOTAL:

TOTAL EXPENSES:

$800,000.00
$800,000.00

$0.00 $800,000.00

ENDING FUND BALANCE:

$0.00 $0.00

599



600

DALLAS COMMUNITY SCHOOL
LOAN RENOVATION PROJECT
RENOVATION BUDGET
NOVEMBER 20, 2023

" Original Budget  Paid to Date R;:I\:'i‘r::ing Revised Budget
Project Expense *
Hard Cost
Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) $ 1275000 $ - $ 1275000 $ 1,275,000
5 - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ -
S - $ - $ - $ -
Asbestos Abatement $ 30,000 §$ - $ 30,000 § 30,000
Seismic Retro Upgrade $ - 8 - $ - $ -
1.5% Green Energy Technology $ - § - $ - 8 -
Construction Contingency $ 80,100 $ - $ 80,100 $ 80,100
Construction Sub Total $ 1,385100 $ - $ 1385100 $ 1,385,100
Soft Cost
Administrative Cost
Legal Fees $ 10,000 $ - $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Bond Counsel $ - $ - $ - $ -
Bond Issuance Cost $ - $ - $ - $ -
Builders Risk Insurance $ - 3 - $ - $ -
Project Management 3 98,000 $ - $ 98,000 $ 98,000
Reimbursable Expenses 3 2500 $ - 3 2500 $ 2,500
Other Administrative Charges $ - $ - $ - $ -
Site Cost
Site Survey $ - $ - 3 - $ -
Geo-Tech Report $ - % - $ - 8 -
Planning Cost
Design Fees $ 170,000 $ - $ 170,000 $ 170,000
A & E Reimbursable Expenses $ 5000 $ - $ 5000 $ 5,000
Commissioning $ - 3 - $ - 8 -
Hazardous Materials Consultant $ 8,000 $ - $ 8000 3 8,000
Building Envelope Consultant $ - 8 - $ - $ -
Constructability Review $ - $ - $ - $ -
Special Inspection and Testing $ 9,500 $ - $ 9500 $ 9,500
Plan Review & Building Permits $ 26,000 $ - $ 26,000 3 26,000
Printing & Plan Distribution $ - $ - $ - 3 -
Miscellaneous Fees $ - $ - $ - $ -
Ed Specs $ - $ - $ - $ -
Kitchen $ - $ - $ & $ _
Miscellaneous
Legal Advertisements $ 1,200 $ - $ 1,200 3 1,200
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FF&E) 3 275,000 $ - $ 275,000 $ 275,000
Technology $ 26,000 $ - $ 26,000 $ 26,000
Technology (Design) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Acoustics $ - 8 - 8 - 3 -
Criminal Background Checks $ 200 § - $ 290 $ 290
System Development Charges $ 26,000 $ - $ 26,000 $ 26,000
Value Engineering $ - $ - $ - 8 -
Utility Connection Fee $ = $ - $ - $ -
Unallocated Owner Contingency $ 200,000 $ - $ 200,000 $ 200,000
Inflation $ - $ - $ - 8 -
Sub Total Soft Cost $ 857,490 $ - $ 857,490 $ 857,490
Total Project Cost $ 2,242,590 $ - $ 2242590 $ 2,242,590




COMPANY

January 17, 2024

Juli Ann Linderman, Executive Director
Dallas Community School

689 Main Street

Dallas, Oregon 97338

Re: Dallas Community School — High School Remodel Project Management Fee
Proposal

Dear Juli Ann,

HMK Company is pleased to present a fee to provide Program | Project Management services for
the Dallas Community Schools for the remodel to the new High School. We understand that the
project assigned to the Program | Project Manager is funded by traditional loan financing with a
project budget of $2,242,590. The basis for this fee is recognizing the project having a 18 month
duration.

Project scope summary to include, but not be limited to, the following:

High School Remodel: remodeling to building recently purchased formerly Wells Fargo Bank.

Project purposes to modernize the existing building to accommodate spaces for the Dallas
Community High School.

The scope of services listed below are the responsibilities and duties of the Program | Project
Management group and compliment the services listed in the RFP:

1. Services Required

a. Actas District's representative during all designated phases of the capital program.

b. Provide and distribute, throughout all phases, management reports detailing
program progress, schedule and financial status.

c. Assist the District in creation and implementation of format(s) to disseminate this
information to the public at large.

d. Attend public meetings as a representative of the District.

e. Provide management to ensure compliance with all public entity rules and
regulations.

f. Provide periodic presentations/tours as directed by the District.

2. Contract Administrative Tasks

a. Responsible for the procurement of various professional services via appropriate
public procurement.

b. Responsible for all administrative tasks related to the solicitations including placing
advertisements, issuance of all notices, review of proposals with the District,
recommendations to award contracts, and issuance of contracts. Collection of all
required contract documentation including insurance certificates, W9, and other
required paperwork.

c. Administrate criminal background and SB 155 check process providing District and
contractors a weekly matrix of all employees screened through the background
check process as required by law.

d. Keep repository of all solicitation, award, and contract documentation for auditors.

PO Box 3223 | 363 State Street, Salem, Oregon 97302 | 971.304.0677 | www.hmkco.org

601



e.

Provide District with contracts that can be the basis for Districts legal review.

3. Program Planning Phase

a.

d.
e.

Develop an overall Program Implementation Plan for the project to include a
preliminary master schedule, critical dates, preliminary contracting strategy for all
projects, and other pertinent issues.

Review projects and develop a master program budget.

Develop a project reporting, communications, and documentation system to
include progress, schedule, financial, and other information to be distributed to
appropriate parties throughout all phases of the work.

Develop procedures for administration of the projects.

Develop and negotiate consultant contracts in conjunction with District’s staff when
requested.

4. Consultant Solicitation Process

a.

Generate, issue and facilitate the RFP process and selection for Design
Consultants including Architects, Hazardous Material Consultant, Geo-Technical
Investigation, Topographical Site Survey, Envelope Consultant, Commissioning
Agent, Construction special inspection, and other owner solicited consultants.
Generate, issue and facilitate the RFP process and selection of Construction
Manager | General Contractor (CM|GC) if the CM|GC is the desired project delivery
method.

5. Schematic Design Phase

a.

g.
h.

i.
6. Design

aooo

o

Provide general direction to the project consultants and architects. Monitor their
activities, and review consultant products. Review and recommend the payment
of consultant billings.

Monitor design schedule. Monitor the design process by reviewing design
documents for thoroughness and code compliance. Review cost estimates in
conjunction with the design teams for each project in each phase of the design
process.

Assist with value engineering and energy efficiency design protocols. Assist with
constructability analysis.

Coordinate the design process with the master schedule.

Facilitate and assist Design team with cost estimate review and reconciliation
process.

Work with the District and other consultants on the development of the Division 0
and 1 (Front End) Specifications for the administration of work during the
construction process.

Assist with bid package format (designation of additive and deductive alternates,
etc.).

Identify long lead items and collaborate on processes to insure timely delivery in
alignment with the master project schedules.

Assist Architect firm in permitting projects.

Development Phase

Review and evaluate final selection of components and systems.

Assist with establishment of bidding schedule.

Establish general conditions planning.

Facilitate and assist Design team with cost estimate review and reconciliation
process.

Refine project budgets.

Evaluate and identify prospective responsible local contractors available to bid on
projects.

7. Construction Document Phase

a.

PO Box

Review and evaluate final selection of components and systems.

3223 | 363 State Street, Salem, Oregon 97302 | 971.304.0677 | www.hmkco.org

602



b.
C.
d.
e.
8. Contra

a.
b.

Assist with establishment of bidding schedule.

Establish general conditions planning.

Facilitate and assist Design team with cost estimate review and reconciliation
process.

Refine project budgets.

ct Document Review

Conduct final pre-bid review of project manual(s), plans, and specifications.
Assist in preparation of instructions to bidders.

9. Bidding and Contract Award Phase

a.

b.
c.

d

Consult with the District and its consultants regarding bid document preparation,
bidding strategies, evaluation of bids, and notification of qualified bidders.

Take part in pre-bid conferences.

Assist District in evaluation of bid responses and bid award in alignment with
project master budgets

Set disbursement schedules with contractor(s).

10. Cons'truction Phase

a.

i
11. Post C

a.

b.

C.
d.

Facilitate periodic Owner, Architect, & Contractor (OAC) construction meetings.
Monitor general and subcontractor's work with the Architect to support
conformance to codes and project design specifications. HMK will be responsible
for producing the meeting minutes.

Prepare and coordinate preparation of End of Month progress and financial
information reports required by the District; periodically brief District staff and the
School Board on project status, progress, and financial aspects.

Review and evaluate work completed and materials received, review and
recommend progress payments.

Review and evaluate with design team change orders. Communicate change
orders and construction change directives to the Superintendent for authorization.

. Work with general contractor to support the security and safety of the project site

during construction.

Track and communicate the District occupancy schedule(s).

Assist with punch list development.

Review and evaluate substantial completion, temporary occupancy, and final
occupancy.

Ensure training of District staff on building systems and turnover process.

onstruction Phase

Participate in construction contract close-out activities including final payment and
release of retainage.

Assist with documentation of warranty issues for ongoing administration by District
staff.

Provide final project close-out financial information.

Facilitate 11 month warranty walk with architect and contractor. Monitor
contractors completion of items identified during 11 month walk.

12. Other Services

a.
b.

Assist the District in tasks as directed by the Business Manager.
Assist District in application for possible energy savings, rebates, or funding from
State and utility companies’ programs.

13. Communication Services — Additional Charge

a.

PO Box

Deploy one at least one social media post per project each week across three
platforms Facebook, Instagram, and LinkedIn. Posts will tag as school district
pages as appropriate, with advertisement money placed for specific reach in the
local community.

Develop and maintain bond landing page.

3223 | 363 State Street, Salem, Oregon 97302 | 971.304.0677 | www.hmkco.org

603



604

Produce a monthly newsletter for email distribution.

Produce a quarterly newsletter for email distribution.

Still photography and videos will be done at an extra cost.

Assist the District in communicating with its staff and community as specifically -
directed by the District.

~oao

The project management fee proposal is a “not-to-exceed” fixed fee proposal in the amount
$199,656.00 plus reimbursable expenses based upon assigned staff as outlined in the fixed fee
matrix included. Compensation will be based on the Hourly Rate Schedule as set forth in the
RFP response, subject to annual adjustments. Thisis a 11 - month duration contract commencing
on February 1, 2024 and ending on October 31, 2025.

Eind Regards,

David McKay
CEOQ | Co-Own

PO Box 3223 | 363 State Street, Salem, Oregon 97302 | 971.304.0677 | www.hmkco.org




605

= - 2099 $[zZ09'9 $|ovsiL $|ows'hL $|9vs'th $|9vs'ih §|9ps'iL $|9psLl 9ps'LL L16'LL 834 Ayjuop
0’0 0'0 €0 €0 S0 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 EIE]
0 0 8t g% 08 08 08 08 08 08 08 v8 sInoH
0 0 z z z z Z z z z z z £6 $ JuBjUNO22Y Ja3foid
0 0 zL ) zZ1 zL zl zl zZl zl zl 9l £6 $ uopesysjujwpy 3asfold
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 §G1 $ Jabeuel jo8foid
0 0 ze ze 9 9 ) 9 ¥9 ¥9 9 9 GGl $ Jebeuely weiboig
0 0 z z z z 4 z z z Z 4 081 $ abaeyo uj jedjoulg
23( AON 120 dag m:( Inr unp Aep idy e qoed uep ajey 670z
§202
04S'LL 01511 0L6'tL $|osL'9  $|olLe  $|oil'9 s|ozze $|ozz'e9 ¢|owz'e  $|o9s'e 08€'s - 894 Alyjuop
S0 50 50 £'0 £0 £0 €0 €0 0 0 #'0 00 314
¥8 78 8 25 5 ] s S 89 0L 89 0 SINOH
- $0
z z z z z z z z 4 z 0 06 ¢  uopensuwpy josfoid
9l 9l gl al 9l al alL 9l ¢t (4 4% 06 ﬂ uonesysiuiwpy «uw_O._&
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 oSl $ JabBeuey yoafoig
9 ¥9 9 z¢e ze ze ze ze ze ze ze 0SL $ JoBeuep weisbold
4 z z Z 4 z 4 z 4 14 ¥ GLL $ abaeys ul [edidunig
29(Q AON 120 dag Bny Inp unp Aep idy 1By 994 uep ajey $z0zZ
yZ02
XIM1VIN 334 a3xi4 ANYdINOD
103rodd NOILVAONIY 9NIATINg TO0HIS HOIH
TOOHJS ALINNWINOD SY11vVa

ANVdNOD XIWH




